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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
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ACT OF 1934
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or
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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®eacl5(d) of the Exchange Act. Y& No
™

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by SeetiB or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
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to such filing requirements for the past 90 dayss® No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liésnitted electronically and posted on its corpo¥dtb site, if any, every Interactive Data
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the registrant was required to submit and post §iles). Yes®d No O
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of F9ntains certain safe harbor provisions regartiingard-looking statements. This

Form 10-K, and other information provided by ustatements made by our directors, officers or eygas from time to time, may contain
“forward-looking” statements and information, whiicivolve risks and uncertainties. Actual futureulesmay differ materially. Statements
indicating that we “expect,” “estimate,” “believé'dre planning” or “plan to” are forward-lookings are other statements concerning future
financial results, product offerings or other egetiiat have not yet occurred. There are variousifathat could cause actual results or evel
differ materially from those anticipated by thevi@ard-looking statements. Such factors are morg fidkscribed in Item 1A of this Form 10-K
under the heading “Risk Factors.” Although we hageght to identify the most significant risks ta dusiness, we cannot predict whether, or
to what extent, any of such risks may be reali¥éd.also cannot assure you that we have identiflgzbasible issues which we might face. '
undertake no obligation to update any forward-loglk$tatements that we make.

Common Stock Split

On December 20, 2010, our Board of Directors apglav three-for-two common stock split in the forfrastock dividend. Shareholders
received one additional share for every two shheéd. The distribution was made on January 28, 20 khareholders of record at the close of
business on January 12, 2011. All share and pee simounts in this Annual Report have been restategflect the stock split.

Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a global enterprise software company thalbles organizations to achieve higher levels oirtass performance by improving
operational responsiveness. Operational resporesgdn the ability of business processes and sgdtenespond to changing business
conditions and customer interactions as they o&blgr offer a portfolio of best-in-class, real-timaftsvare solutions providing enterprises with
significantly improved operational responsiveneghiw all events and activities that they particgaA key offering is the Progress®
Responsive Process Management (Progress RPM ™ }isaitprovides comprehensive visibility and insigtidb business systems and
processes, event processing to respond to evexttsdtld affect performance, and business processmgement enabling companies to
continually improve business processes withouugison to their ongoing operations or technolodyastructure. Progress RPM enables
enterprises to achieve a higher level of businesfopnance. We also provide enterprise data solst{data access and integration) and
application development platforms (for applicatd®velopment and management, and SaaS enablementha®imize the benefits of
operational responsiveness while minimizing infotioratechnology (IT) complexity and total cost afimership.

We measure performance within three business ulitgtication Development Platforms, Enterprise Bgsis Solutions and Enterprise Data
Solutions. Our product lines comply with open stdd, deliver high levels of performance and sékthaland provide a low total cost of
ownership. Our products are generally sold as peapécenses, but certain product lines and bssiraetivities also use term or subscription
licensing models.

Our Application Development Platforms business ungludes the Progress OpenEdge® product set wdriebles independent software
vendors (ISVs) and end-user organizations to dgveleploy and manage sophisticated business applisan complex business
environments. Our Progress Orbix® and Progressdf®ere® products are also part of this busine#s un

Our Enterprise Business Solutions business unliidies solutions that provide responsive integratiorsiness transaction management and
real-time business visibility, business event pssagy, and business process management. Produbts business unit include the Progress
Apama® event processing platform, the ProgressoAat® business transaction management platformPtbgress Savvion®usiness proce
management suite, the Progress Sonic® integratimeupts and the Fuse™ open source infrastructagugts.

The Progress RPM suite delivers immediate and raahile insight into business operations throughPitogress Control Tower™, a unified,
interactive environment. The Progress RPM suitédlkesabusiness users to gain visibility into critipeocesses, immediately respond to events,
and continuously improve business performance withgsruption to existing infrastructure.

Our Enterprise Data Solutions business unit helpp® dperational responsiveness by delivering ihletinformation, in the right form, at the
right time. This business unit includes solutiond aroducts that provide data management, datgratien, replication, caching, access, and
security capabilities spanning multiple data sosir&nterprise Data Solutions enables
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enterprises to solve three important challenggsa¢tess and integrate fragmented enterprise ddtdeliver actionable information in real
time; (2) leverage mainframe data and applicatieitis different architectures; and (3) connect aggtibns on various platforms to numerous
data sources. Products in this business unit iecRrdgress Data Services®, Progress DataDirect@é&® and Progress DataDirect
Shadow®.

Approximately half of our worldwide license revengeealized through relationships with indirecanhel partners, principally application
partners and original equipment manufacturers (OEMgplication partners are ISVs that develop aradkat applications using our
technology and resell our products in conjunctigthwales of their own products that incorporateteahnology. These application partners
sell business applications in diverse industriehsas manufacturing, distribution, financial seegcretail, government and health care. OEMs
are companies that embed our products into their snftware products or devices. We operate in NArtterica, Latin America, Europe,
Middle East, Africa (EMEA) and the Asia/Pacific feg through local subsidiaries as well as indepanhdestributors.

Our Products
The following descriptions detail our significarrbducts within each business unit:

Application Development Platforms business ur
Progres® OpenEdge®

The Progress® OpenEdge® platform, with more thgf@® customers worldwide, is a comprehensive platfior the rapid development and
deployment of business applications that are staiselaased and service-oriented. OpenEdge-baseidatppis can be deployed and managed
over many computer platforms as well as under & 3aadel. OpenEdge provides a unified environmentmsing development tools,
application servers, application management t@rissmbedded database, and the capability to coanddhtegrate with other applications
data sources. The primary products included inghisluct set are OpenEdge Studio, OpenEdge RDBNs&nEdge Application Server,
OpenEdge DataServers, OpenEdge Management and GypeReplication.

Progres® Orbix®

Progress® Orbix® is one of the marke&ding implementations of Common Object Requesk@&r Architecture (CORBA) and is embeddet
telephone switches, online brokerage systems, medtia news delivery, airline front desk systemi arad road traffic control, large scale
banking systems, credit card clearance, subway gesment and CAD systems. Orbix exemplifies our dsibo to addressing high-end
enterprise integration problems with standards-dbaséutions. Orbix is the enterprise CORBA produtdized by organizations when high
performance, high availability, and security andteyns management are critical. The primary prodactaded in this product set are Orbix
and Orbacus™.

Progres® ObjectStore®

The Progress® ObjectStorafject data management system enables users ¢odstiar much faster than with a relational databesgageme
system or file-based storage system. The Objea$aduct provides transactional and high-availgtfiéatures utilized in distributed
enterprises, but with less code than tradition&lotese technology. The ObjectStore product providgs performance data management with
faster time to market.

Enterprise Business Solutions business ur
Progres® Responsiveness Process Management

The Progress RPM™ suite delivers immediate andmatile insight into business operations throughPtiogress Control Tower™. The
Progress RPM suite enables business users to giaiprehensive visibility into critical processesniediately respond to events, and
continuously improve business performance withdsrughtion to existing infrastructure. An importaifering associated with the RPM suite
are solution accelerators, which are a unique dhyadf pre-built, industry-specific, dynamic apptions layered on the Progress Responsive
Process Management suite developed specificallgdiacted industries. They allow business usedgfine their business processes based on
best-in-class industry practices.
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Progress Control Tower™

The Progress Control Tower™ is a unified, intergctiusiness control panel that gives business tisetsols needed to view what is
happening within their business and the abilitpdsess how to improve it. This fully configuraliésgture-rich, interactive framework delivers
visibility into key performance indicators (KPIs)dithe ability to raise alerts and act on thenead-time. Users can also create and model
business processes that can then be monitoreargrdved dynamically.

Progres® Sonic®

The Progress® Sonic® product set helps IT orgalmizatachieve broad-scale interoperability of ITteyss and the flexibility to adapt these
systems to rapidly changing business needs. Soodtpts include an enterprise messaging systeno@af the leading enterprise service
buses (ESB). Sonic products simplify the integratiad flexible reuse of diverse and often propnetasiness systems by manipulating them
as modular, standards-based services, which ceapily combined to serve enterprises in new w8psic ESB provides reliable integration
of a service oriented architecture (SOA) that ipooates multiple sites or management domains. énitustering technology and continuous
availability architecture (CAA) ensure scalableqassing that never loses messages and never geas Qarough patent-pending CAA, Sonic
products can deliver timely and continuous missidtieal business events. The primary productsuded in this product set are Sonic ESB,
SonicMQ®, Sonic Orchestration Server and Sonic \Berich.

Progres® Actional®

Progress® Actional® provides operational and bussnasibility, root cause analysis, policy-basecusity and control of services in a
heterogeneous environment. Actional can be usdy iaahe lifecycle to enable pre-production teaimaddress service quality before runtime,
and Actional’'s comprehensive visibility and manageirtools can be efficiently applied to productapplications. The primary products
included in this product set are Actional Entempyiactional Diagnostics and Actional Application\éopment.

Progres® Apama®

Progress® Apama® offers flexible and powerful coexpdvent processing (CEP) capabilities and broatt@haonnectivity. Apama is one of
the leading platforms in capital markets for builglhigh frequency trading applications. Apama glises firms the tools for creating, testing
and deploying unique strategies for low latencghhtthroughput applications including algorithmiading, market aggregation, smart order
routing, market surveillance and monitoring, anal+tene risk management. CEP helps businesseswchfgerational responsiveness by
uncovering events or event patterns in data stréebatsignal new opportunities, critical threatsclhanging conditions or factors that impact
the organization. With Apama, business events eatobrelated and analyzed across multiple datarsgén real-time.

Progres® Savvion®

Progress® Savvion BusinessManager is one of tltgngdusiness process management software proditbtsools that provide an efficient
way for customers to drive business process inimvabavvion provides customers the tools to craattoptimize process-driven solutions
and flexible interfaces to manage daily work wigalrtime visibility into business processes.

Fuse®

Fuse products provide customers with access tegsafnal open source integration and messaginga@fthrough a subscription model. We
established FuseSource Corp. in October 2010 tatpas a wholly owned subsidiary for the Fuse petsl FuseSource subscriptions include
certified distributions of Apache Software Foundatprojects, professional documentation, entergeigel support and tools to allow
management and metering. FuseSource offers tleioly certified Apache distributions: Fuse ESB® daiterprise integration projects, Fuse
Message Broker® for enabling communications betwaggplications and service components, Fuse SerfFigaaework® for enabling Web
services and Fuse Mediation Router® for enablirofpestration and routing.
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Enterprise Data Solutions business un
Progres® DataDirect Connect®

Progress® DataDirect Connect® products provide datmectivity components that use industry-stand#sifaces to connect applications
running on various platforms to any major datab¥é#h components embedded in the products of oBérsbftware companies and in the
applications of thousands of large enterprisesPiaDirect Connect product set is a global le@uléine data connectivity market.

Progress®DataDirect® Shadow®

The Progress® DataDirect® Shadow® product is airttuleaded, native runtime architecture and codstdid development environment
providing a real-time foundation architecture ftarglards-based mainframe integration. The Shadodupt supports Web services for SOA,
real-time events for event-driven architecture, SQldirect data access and transactional supparaatomatic presentation layer generation
for extending screen-based applications to the VWWkb.primary products included in this productaet DataDirect Shadow, DataDirect
Shadow z/Direct and DataDirect Shadow z/Services.

Progres® Data Services

The Progress® Data Services product set providisini@gration for distributed applications, defing realtime transactional views of shar
data in the form that applications need. The PsxmBataXtend® Semantic Integrator product offeusigue approach to the data management
problems often associated with SOA, employing aroem semantic data model to create sophisticatedtdaisformations, enabling
organizations to integrate heterogeneous dataesswvith no disruption to existing applications. fhanary products included in this product
set are DataXtend Semantic Integrator (Sl), DataXt€E and DataXtend RE.

Segments

We manage performance within three business wmitish meet the criteria for segment reporting:Application Development Platforms,
which includes the OpenEdge, Orbix and ObjectSpooelucts; (2) Enterprise Business Solutions, winickudes the Apama, Sonic, Actional,
Savvion and FuseSource products; and (3) Enterpiasa Solutions, which includes the DataDirect GaninDataDirect Shadow and Data
Services products.

For financial information relating to business segits and international operations, see Note 1BeoConsolidated Financial Statements
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Product Development

Most of our products have been developed by oeria product development staff or the interndifstaf acquired companies. We believe
that the features and performance of our produets@mpetitive with those of other available depetent and deployment tools and that none
of the current versions of our products are apgrivgcobsolescence. However, we believe that sicanifi investments in new product
development and continuing enhancements of ouestiproducts will be required to enable us to nambur competitive position.

For example, some of our newer products requirglaehn level of development, distribution and sup@penditures, on a percentage of
revenue basis, than some of our other more edtablisroduct lines. If revenue generated from tipesducts grows as a percentage of our
revenue and if the expenses associated with threseigts do not decrease on a percentage of relmsi® then our operating margins will be
adversely affected.

Our product development staff consisted of 579 eyg®s as of November 30, 2010. We have five prirdamelopment offices in North
America, three primary development offices in EM&#Ad two primary development offices in India. Wersip$91 million, $93 million and
$88 million in fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008pestively, on product development.

In 2010, we undertook an initiative to increase iovestment and expand our development operatiofrgdia. We expect to increase the siz
our development organization in Hyderabad, Indianfabout a third of our development resourcedtiughalf, in order to maximize
resources and manage our development costs acrease overall R&D headcount and bandwidth in eyrpjroduct areas. Therefore, over
next twelve months, we expect to move and add iaddit product group functions as well as certaimadstrative functions to India. This
expansion in India will result in the reductionmfr development and administration operations haamtdn all other geographies in which we
operate.
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Customers

We market our products globally through channelglirect to end-users and indirect to ISVs (namedyfess Application Partners), OEMs,
and System Integrators. Purchasers of our soluéiadsproducts through our direct sales force anemgdly either business managers or IT
managers in corporations and government agenciesldition, we market our products through indigwnnels, primarily application
partners, and to OEMs who embed our products dopan integrated solution. We use internationstridbutors in certain locations where we
do not have a direct presence. No single custormeabcounted for more than 10% of our total revémaay of our last three fiscal years.

Application Partners

Our application partners cover a broad range okeatar offer an extensive library of business appilins and are a source of follow-on
revenue. We have kept entry costs, consisting pifynaf the initial purchase of development liceasw to encourage a wide variety of
application partners to build applications. If gpkcation partner succeeds in marketing its apgilims, we obtain follow-on revenue as the
application partner licenses our deployment pragitetllow its application to be installed and ubgatustomers. We offer a subscription
model alternative to the traditional perpetualtise model for application partners who have chesemable their business applications under
a SaaS platform.

Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMSs)

We enter into arrangements with OEMs whereby th&@BEbeds our products into its solutions, typicalither software or technology
devices. OEMs typically license the right to embed products into their solutions and distributetrsgolutions for initial terms ranging from
one to three years. Historically, a significanttpor of our OEMs have renewed their agreement uperexpiration of the initial term, although
no assurance can be made that these renewalownfihae in the future.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our products and solutions through ourdaligtobal field operations, which comprise salesyise and support personnel, worldwide.
Additionally, we sell our products and solutionsotigh independent distributors in certain locationtside North America. We have sold our
products and solutions to enterprises in over IMtries. The global field operations and field keding groups are organized by region and
then by direct and indirect channels. We operateeljion in the Americas, EMEA and Asia/Pacific. Wadieve that this structure allows us to
maintain direct contact with our customers and sufiheir diverse market requirements. Our intéameti operations provide focused local
sales, support and marketing efforts and are ablespond directly to changes in local conditions.

Global field operations personnel are responsit@éveloping new direct end-user accounts, ranguitew indirect channel partners,
managing existing channel partner relationshipssamdicing existing customers. We actively see&void conflict between the sales efforts of
our application partners and our own direct safEsts. We use our inside sales team to enhancelioent sales efforts and to generate new
business and follow-on business from existing custs.

Our marketing personnel conduct a variety of manketngagement programs designed to create deroandif products, enhance the market
readiness of our products, raise the general awasenf our company and our products and solutgerserate leads for the global field
operations organization and promote our varioudyeblines. These programs include press relatamalyst relations, investor relations,
digital/web marketing, marketing communicationstiggpation in trade shows and industry conferenaesl production of sales and marketing
literature. We also hold regional user events o locations throughout the world.

Customer Support

Our customer support staff provides telephone aet-¥ased support to enders, application developers and OEMs. Customayspurchas
maintenance services entitling them to softwareatgs] technical support and technical bulletinstfiear maintenance and any subsequent
annual renewals are not included with our prodant$ are purchased separately. We provide suppoustomers primarily through our main
regional customer support centers in Bedford, Masssetts; Morrisville, North Carolina; RotterdaninelNetherlands; and Melbourne,
Australia. Local technical support for specific guats is provided in certain other countries ad.wel
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Professional Services

Our global professional services organization éebwusiness solutions for customers through a o@tibn of products, consulting and
education. Our consulting organization offers prbjaanagement, implementations services, custoralolewment, programming and other
services. Our consulting organization also provelyices to Web-enable existing applications dake advantage of the capabilities of new
product releases. Our education organization offarserous training options, from traditional instar-led courses to advanced learning
modules available via the web or on CDs.

Competition

The computer software industry is intensely conipeti We experience significant competition fromaaiety of sources with respect to all our
products. We believe that the breadth and integmaif our product offerings have become increagiingbortant competitive advantages.
Other factors affecting competition in the marks&sserve include product performance in compleXiegions, application solutions, vendor
experience, ease of integration, price, training support.

We compete in various markets with a number oftiestisuch as IBM Corporation, Microsoft Corporati@racle Corporation and Tibco
Software Inc., which include database vendors mffedevelopment tools in conjunction with theiralzdse systems, numerous enterprise
infrastructure vendors providing integration teclogges, messaging products, event processing ptedmgsiness process management
products and business visibility tools. We belitévat Oracle, Microsoft and IBM currently dominabe tdatabase market and that IBM
currently dominates the messaging market. We ddelEve that there is a dominant vendor in theoihfrastructure software markets. Some
of our competitors have greater financial, marlgtin technical resources than we have and may lea@bdapt more quickly to new or
emerging technologies and changes in customerreagants or to devote greater resources to the gromand sale of their products than we
can. Increased competition could make it morediffifor us to maintain our revenue and marketgmes.

Copyrights, Trademarks, Patents and Licenses

We rely upon a combination of contractual provisiamd copyright, patent, trademark and trade skmstto protect our proprietary rights in
our products. We generally distribute our productder software license agreements that grant cestoanperpetual nonexclusive license to
use our products and contain terms and conditionisilpiting the unauthorized reproduction or trangfeour products. We also license our
products under term or subscription arrangementaddition, we attempt to protect our trade se@atsother proprietary information through
agreements with employees and consultants. Althetgymtend to protect our rights vigorously, theas be no assurance that these measures
will be successful.

We seek to protect the source code of our prodagctsade secrets and as unpublished copyrightekbwdfe hold over 60 patents covering
portions of our products. We also have approxingeiél patent applications for some of our other poddechnologies. Where possible, we
seek to obtain protection of our product namessamdice offerings through trademark registratiod ather similar procedures throughout the
world.

We believe that due to the rapid pace of innovathin our industry, factors such as the technmalgand creative skills of our personnel are
as important in establishing and maintaining adeslip position within the industry as are the wasilegal protections of our technology. In
addition, we believe that the nature of our custeythe importance of our products to them and theed for continuing product support may
reduce the risk of unauthorized reproduction, alffono assurance can be made in this regard.

Employees

As of November 30, 2010, we had 1,576 employee$dwinte, including 502 in sales and marketing, 3i@ustomer support and services, 579
in product development and 176 in administratioan®& of our U.S. employees are subject to a collediargaining agreement. Employees in
certain foreign jurisdictions are represented talavorkers’ councils and/or collective bargainagreements as may be customary or required
in those jurisdictions. We have experienced no vaboppages and believe our relations with emplogeegood.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth certain informati@ygarding our executive officers.

Name Age Position

Barry R. Bycoff 62 Executive Chairman of the Boa

Richard D. Reidy 51 President and Chief Executive Officer and Direl

Joseph A. Andrew 54 Senior Vice President, Human Resour

John Bate: 40 Senior Vice President, Chief Technology Officer &tehd of Corporate Developme
David A. Bensor 51 Executive Vice President and Chief Information ©¢fi

Gary G. Conway 57 Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Offi

James D. Freedm: 62 Senior Vice President and General Coul

John P. Goodsa 46 Senior Vice President, Interim Chief Product Offi

Christopher Larse 52 Executive Vice President, Global Field Operati

Charles F. Wagner, < 42 Executive Vice President, Finance and Administraiod Chief Financial Office

Mr. Bycoff became our Executive Chairman in Mar€l®2 and has been a director since March 2007. FMayn2005 to July 2007, Mr. Bycc
was a venture partner of Pequot Ventures, the vewtpital arm of Pequot Capital Management, Inc.

Mr. Reidy has been President and Chief Executife€@fsince March 2009. Prior to that time, Mr. Reivas Chief Operating Officer from
September 2008 to March 2009. Prior to that tineewhs Executive Vice President, a position he assuimDecember 2007. Prior to
December 2007, Mr. Reidy was President, DataDifechnologies Division. Mr. Reidy joined us in 1985.

Mr. Andrews became Senior Vice President, Humaro®eses in April 2010. Prior to that time, Mr. Andre was Vice President, Human
Resources, a position he held since he joined Eglimuary 1997.

Dr. Bates has been Senior Vice President, Chiefifi@ogy Officer and Head of Corporate Developmémtes December 2009. Prior to that
time, Dr. Bates was Vice President and General ianapama Division from July 2007 to November 20Bfor to that time, he was Vice
President, Apama Products. Dr. Bates co-foundedriapaimited, a predecessor company acquired by Bssgin 1995.

Mr. Benson became Executive Vice President andf@tfiermation Officer in April 2010. Mr. Benson joéd us in June 2009 as Senior Vice
President and Chief Information Officer. Prior ¢injing us, Mr. Benson served as Senior Vice Prasjdghief Information Officer for News
Corporation, a diversified media and entertainnoempany, from May 2003 to August 2008.

Mr. Conway became Executive Vice President and fQWaketing Officer in April 2010. Mr. Conway joimeus in November 2008 as Senior
Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer. Priofjdining us, Mr. Conway was Senior Vice Presid®dyketing at SprintNextel, Inc., with
whom he was employed from 2004 until August 2006.

Mr. Freedman has been Senior Vice President anér@eBounsel since August 2004. Prior to that tireewas Vice President and General
Counsel. Mr. Freedman joined us in 1992.

Mr. Goodson became Senior Vice President, InterimefProduct Officer in October 2010. Prior to thiate, from June 2010 until

October 2010, Mr. Goodson was Senior Vice PresidedtGeneral Manager, Enterprise Data Solutiondamerprise Business Solutions. In
April 2009, Mr. Goodson became a Senior Vice Pe#idMr. Goodson had been a Vice President and r@eanager, DataDirect
Technologies Division since December 2007. Pridbéaember 2007, Mr. Goodson was Vice PresidengwitdOperations, for DataDirect
Technologies Division. Mr. Goodson joined DataDir€echnologies Limited, a predecessor company aeduiy Progress, in 1992.

Mr. Larsen became Executive Vice President, Gléleld Operations in April 2010. Mr. Larsen joineslin September 2009 as Senior Vice
President, Global Field Operations. Prior to joinirs, Mr. Larsen served as President and ChiefalipgrOfficer of Allegro Development, a
provider of energy trading risk management softwhien January 2008 until January 2009. Prior & thme, Mr. Larsen was Executive Vice
President of Global Field Operations at TIBCO Saftsy an enterprise software company, from Septe@®@3 to April 2007.

Mr. Wagner joined us in November 2010 as ExecWifiee President, Finance and Administration and ClRieancial Officer. Prior to joining
us, Mr. Wagner served as Corporate Vice PresidehCGhief Financial Officer of Millipore Corporatidnom August 2007 to July 2010, when
the company was acquired by Merck KGaA. Mr. Wagaorred Millipore in December 2002 as Director ofédégic Planning and Business
Development and was appointed Vice President, &gfiat
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Planning and Business Development, in March 208&jisg in this role until his appointment as cHiafincial officer of Millipore.

Available Information

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reporid@rm 10-Q, Current Reports on FornK8including exhibits, and amendments to tF
reports filed or furnished pursuant to Sectionsalafd 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@834amended, are available free of charge
on our website at www.progress.com as soon asmahbopracticable after such reports are electadlyidiled with, or furnished to, the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Therimdtion posted on our website is not incorporatéal inis Annual Report.

Our Code of Conduct is also available on our webgitlditional information about this code and ammadts and waivers thereto can found
below in Part Ill, Item 10 of this Annual Report.
Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

We operate in a rapidly changing environment thablves certain risks and uncertainties, some d€lwhre beyond our control. The risks
described below are not the only risks we face.italthl risks and uncertainties not currently knokerus or that we currently deem to be
immaterial may also materially adversely affect business, financial condition and/or operatingitss

Our revenue and quarterly results may fluctuate, iwh could adversely affect our stock pricé/e have experienced, and may in the future
experience, significant fluctuations in our qudst@perating results that may be caused by mangfacThese factors include:

. changes in demand for our produt

. introduction, enhancement or announcement of prsducus or our competitor
. market acceptance of our new produ

. the growth rates of certain market segments in lwvihie compete

. size and timing of significant ordei

. budgeting cycles of custome

. mix of distribution channels

. mix of products and services so

. mix of international and North American revenu

. fluctuations in currency exchange rat

. changes in the level of operating expen

. the amount of our sto-based compensatio

. restructuring program:

. reorganizations of our salesfort

. completion or announcement of acquisitions by ususrcompetitors

. customer order deferrals in anticipation of newdoicis announced by us or our competitors;
. general economic conditions in regions in whichoeaduct busines:

Revenue forecasting is uncertain, and the failure meet our forecasts could result in a decline iarestock price.Most of our expenses are
relatively fixed, including costs of personnel dadilities, and are not easily reduced. Thus, aexpected reduction in our revenue, or failui
achieve the anticipated rate of growth, would haweaterial adverse effect on our profitabilityolfr operating results do not meet our publicly
stated guidance, if any, or the expectations oéstors, our stock price may decline.

Weakness in the U.S. and international economiesymasult in fewer sales of our products and may etvise harm our businesdVe are
subject to the risks arising from adverse changegabal economic conditions, especially thosehnt).S., Europe and the Asia-Pacific region.
The past two years have been characterized by glebkl economic conditions, tightening of creditrkes and instability in the financial
markets. Although these conditions seem to be imipg if these conditions continue or worsen, costes may delay, reduce or forego
technology purchases, both directly and throughapptication partners and OEMSs. This could resuteductions in sales of our products,
longer sales cycles, slower adoption of new teabgiek and increased price competition. Furtheeraetting economic conditions could
adversely affect our customers and their abilitpag amounts owed to us. Any of these events wiikgty harm our business, results of
operations and financial condition.
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Our international operations expose us to additidrrésks, and changes in global economic and pol&iconditions could adversely affect
our international operations, our revenue and ouehincome. In the past few fiscal years, we have generatedd®t 50% and 60% of our
total revenue from sales outside North Americaitieal instability, oil price shocks and armed dastfin various regions of the world can lead
to economic uncertainty and may adversely impacbaoginess. If customers’ buying patterns, decisi@king processes, timing of expected
deliveries and timing of new projects unfavoratiyange due to economic or political conditions, ¢hgould be a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition and operatingltssOther potential risks inherent in our intedroaal business include:

. longer payment cycle

. greater difficulties in accounts receivable colieat

. unexpected changes in regulatory requirem

. export restrictions, tariffs and other trade bas;i

. difficulties in staffing and managing foreign opgoas;

. reduced or minimal protection of intellectual prageights in some countrie

. seasonal reductions in business activity duringstremer months in Europe and certain other partiseoivorld;
. economic instability in emerging markets; ¢

. potentially adverse tax consequent

Any one or more of these factors could have a rizdtadverse effect on our international operati@m], consequently, on our business,
financial condition and operating results.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates clolhave an adverse impact on our financial conditi@nd results of operationgChanges

in the value of foreign currencies relative to th&. dollar may adversely affect our results ofrafiens and financial position. We seek to
reduce our exposure to fluctuations in exchangesray entering into foreign exchange option and/éod contracts to hedge certain actual and
forecasted transactions of selected currenciesm{yna Europe, Brazil, Japan and Australia). Ourrency hedging transactions may not be
effective in reducing any adverse impact of flutituas in foreign currency exchange rates. Furttier jmposition of exchange or price contr

or other restrictions on the conversion of foredgmrencies could have a material adverse effecunrbusiness.

Technology and customer requirements evolve rapidlpur industry, and if we do not continue to ddee new products and enhance our
existing products in response to these changes, lmusiness could be harme@®ngoing enhancements to our product sets will beired to
enable us to maintain our competitive position. W&y not be successful in developing and marketiigaecements to our products on a tir
basis, and any enhancements we develop may notaigdyjaddress the changing needs of the marketpacerlaying the risks associated
with our existing products and enhancements areioggechnological developments and rapid changesistomer requirements. Our future
success will depend upon our ability to develop iatrdduce in a timely manner new products thaétatvantage of technological advances
and respond to new customer requirements. The @d@went of new products is increasingly complex anckrtain, which increases the risk of
delays. We may not be successful in developing pr@ducts incorporating new technology on a timelgib, and any new products may not
adequately address the changing needs of the rplaket Failure to develop new products and prodobaincements that meet market nee:

a timely manner could have a material adverse effieour business, financial condition and opetatgsults.

We are substantially dependent on our Progress Cpage product lineWe derive a significant portion of our revenue freaftware license
and maintenance revenue attributable to our Pre@dgenEdge product set. Accordingly, our futureltesiepend on continued market
acceptance of OpenEdge. If new technologies entbegeare superior to, or more responsive to custoeggirements, than OpenEdge such
that we are unable to maintain OpenEdge’s competfgosition within its marketplace, this will hagenaterial adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results.

We expect to make additional acquisitions or inveshts in new businesses, products or technologies involve additional risks, which
could disrupt our business or harm our financial odition or results of operationsAs part of our business strategy, we have made, and
expect to continue to make, acquisitions of busiee®r investments in companies that offer compi¢ang products, services and
technologies. If we are unable to identify and ctatgosuch acquisitions, we may not achieve ourmeger earnings targets. Any acquisitions
that we do complete involve a number of risks,udahg the risks of assimilating the operations parsonnel of acquired companies, realizing
the value of the acquired assets relative to thee graid, distraction of management from our ongdinsinesses and potential product
disruptions associated with the sale of the acquitanpany’s products. These factors could havetarmmabadverse effect on our business,
financial condition and operating results. The idastion we pay for any future acquisitions comiclude our stock. As a result, future
acquisitions could cause dilution to existing shatders and to earnings per share.
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The segments of the software industry in which wartiipate are intensely competitive, and our inéty to compete effectively would harm
our businessWe experience significant competition from a variet sources with respect to the marketing andifiigion of our products.
Many of our competitors have greater financial, keting or technical resources than we do and mabbeto adapt more quickly to new or
emerging technologies and changes in customerraagants or to devote greater resources to the gromand sale of their products than we
can. Increased competition could make it morediffifor us to maintain our market presence or keadownward pricing pressure.

During 2010, we announced a new product initiatilie, Progress RPM suite, which is designed to enalinesses to gain visibility into
critical processes, immediately respond to evemtiscentinuously improve business performance. WieveRPM will enhance our
competitiveness within our markets and our longatgrowth prospects. If we are not successful inetkecution of this new product initiative
or if the customer demand for RPM is not as we etair revenue growth will be adversely impacted.

In addition, the marketplace for new products tersely competitive and characterized by low besrie entry. For example, an increase in
market acceptance of open source software may cawseward pricing pressures. As a result, new cditgpe possessing technological,
marketing or other competitive advantages may eenangl rapidly acquire market share. In additiom;ent and potential competitors may
make strategic acquisitions or establish cooperatlationships among themselves or with thirdiparthereby increasing their ability to
deliver products that better address the needargbrmspective customers. Current and potentialpsditors also may be more successful than
we are in having their products or technologiesaljidiccepted. We may be unable to compete suctgssfiainst current and future
competitors, and our failure to do so could hawesterial adverse effect on our business, prospitssicial condition and operating results.

We are undertaking an expansion of our developmantl administrative operations in India, which wilead to increased costs in the short
term and may not succeed in reducing costs in thed term.In 2010, we undertook an initiative to increase iovestment and expand our
development operations in India which will increéise size of our development organization from alaothird of our development resource
about half. We undertook this initiative in ordemhaximize resources and manage our developmetst @ssve increase overall R&D
headcount and bandwidth in our key product arelsréffore, over the next twelve months, we expentdwe and add additional product gre
functions as well as certain administrative funasi®o India. This expansion in India will resulttive reduction of our development and
administrative operations headcount in all otherggaphies in which we operate. We could experietetays, business disruptions or
unanticipated employee turnover in connection Wtk initiative, and there can be no assurancetbigaéxpected benefits of this initiative will
be realized.

We rely on the experience and expertise of our lgkilemployees, and must continue to attract andametgualified technical, marketing and
managerial personnel in order to succeedur future success will depend in a large part upamability to attract and retain highly skilled
technical, managerial, sales and marketing perdomhere is significant competition for such pensehin the software industry. We may not
continue to be successful in attracting and retgitihe personnel we require to develop new andrer@tbproducts and to continue to grow and
operate profitably.

If our products contain software defects or secyrilaws, it could harm our revenues and expose aditigation. Our products are complex
develop and, despite extensive testing and quadityrol, may contain defects or security flaws,eesgly when we first introduce them or
when new versions are released. We may need te gsgtective releases of our software productsxtarfy defects or errors. The detection
correction of any security flaws can be time conisignand costly. Errors in our software productsld@aifect the ability of our products to

work with other hardware or software products, daiglay the development or release of new prodaratew versions of products and could
adversely affect market acceptance of our prodaratiscould expose us to potential litigation. If @gerience errors or delays in releasing new
products or new versions of products, such errodetays could have a material adverse effect omexenue.

We recognize a substantial portion of our revenuerh sales made through third parties, including oapplication partners and OEMs, and
adverse developments in the businesses of these garties or in our relationships with them couldarm our revenues and results of
operations.Our future results depend upon our continued ssfgkedistribution of our products through our apption partner and OEM
channels. Application partners utilize our techigglto create their applications and resell our potsi along with their own applications. OE
embed our products within their software productteohnology devices. The activities of these tipiadties are not within our direct control.
Our failure to manage our relationships with thigsel parties effectively could impair the successur sales, marketing and support activi

A reduction in the sales efforts, technical captid or financial viability of these parties, asalignment of interest between us and them, or a
termination of our relationship with a major apption partner or OEM could have a negative effector sales and financial results. Any
adverse effect on the application partners’ or OBMsinesses related to competition, pricing areepfactors could also have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condigiod operating results.

12




Table of Contents

We could incur substantial cost in protecting ourgprietary software technology or fail to protectiptechnology, which would harm our
businessWe rely principally on a combination of contracbpisions and copyright, trademark, patent and tsseet laws to protect our
proprietary technology. Despite our efforts to padtour proprietary rights, unauthorized partiey mtdempt to copy aspects of our products or
to obtain and use information that we regard agnetary. Policing unauthorized use of our produstifficult. Litigation may be necessary in
the future to enforce our intellectual propertyhii to protect our trade secrets or to deterntinevalidity and scope of the proprietary rights of
others. This litigation could result in substantiats and diversion of resources, whether or motilimately prevail on the merits. The steps
we take to protect our proprietary rights may ksdequate to prevent misappropriation of our teasmyglmoreover, others could independe
develop similar technology.

We could be subject to claims that we infringe itetual property rights of others, which could har our business, financial condition or
results of operationsThird parties could assert infringement claimshie tuture with respect to our products and tectmgland such claims
might be successful. This litigation could resnlsubstantial costs and diversion of resourcestheer not we ultimately prevail on the
merits. This litigation could also lead to our lgprohibited from selling one or more of our protcause reluctance by potential customers
to purchase our products, or result in liabilityour customers and could have a material advefseteh our business, financial condition and
operating results.

The loss of technology licensed from third partiesuld adversely affect our ability to deliver ourquucts.We utilize certain technology that
we license from third parties, including softwalattis integrated with internally developed softvand used in our products to perform key
functions. This technology, or functionally simil@chnology, may not continue to be available ammmercially reasonable terms in the future,
or at all. The loss of any significant third-patgghnology license could cause delays in our ghiitdeliver our products or services until
equivalent technology is developed internally anieglent third-party technology, if available, @entified, licensed and integrated.

The use of open source software in our products nexpose us to additional risk8Ve license certain open source software pursuditeinse
agreements that require a user who distributesitiea source software as a component of the us#tisase to disclose publicly part or all of
the source code to the user’s software. This effelgtrenders what was previously proprietary saftevopen source software. Many features
we may wish to add to our products in the future ip@ available as open source software and oul@awvent team may wish to make use of
this software to reduce development costs and spedde development process. While we carefully iomhe use of all open source softw
and try to ensure that no open source softwaredd in such a way as to require us to disclossdbece code to the related product, such use
could inadvertently occur. Additionally, if a thighrty has incorporated certain types of open sosoftware into its software but has failed to
disclose the presence of such open source sofamateve embed that third party software into onmore of our products, we could, under
certain circumstances, be required to disclosedliece code to our product. This could have a rightidverse effect on our business.

Our common stock price may continue to be volatiihich could result in losses for investorEhe market price of our common stock, like
that of other technology companies, is volatile nslubject to wide fluctuations in response tortgrly variations in operating results,
announcements of technological innovations or nemdycts by us or our competitors, changes in firmstimates by securities analysts or
other events or factors. Our stock price may atsaftected by broader market trends unrelated tg@erformance. As a result, purchasers of
our common stock may be unable at any given tingelictheir shares at or above the price they faaithem.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
As of the date of this report, we do not have gogrocomments or communications from the SEC relatedrr financial statements or periodic
filings with the SEC.

Item 2. Properties

We own our principal administrative, sales, suppmarketing, product development and distributiacilities, which are located in three
buildings totaling approximately 258,000 square fededford, Massachusetts. In addition, we maintdfices in leased facilities in
approximately 13 other locations in North Americal approximately 27 locations outside North Ameritiae terms of our leases generally
range from one to six years. We believe that ocitifi@s are adequate for our current needs andsthigable additional space will be available
as needed.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are subject to various legal proceedings arithslaeither asserted or unasserted, which aritieeiordinary course of business. While the
outcome of these claims cannot be predicted wittaicgy, management does not believe that the owcof any of these legal matters will
have a material adverse effect on our consolidiweadicial position or results of operations.
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On January 21, 2010, JuxtaComm Technologies (Jexted) filed a complaint in the Eastern District afXBs against Progress Software, two
of our subsidiaries and 19 other defendants, altegifringement of JuxtaComm'’s US patent 6,195,663 stem for Transforming and
Exchanging Data Between Distributed Heterogeneampliter Systems”). In its complaint, JuxtaCommgakethat certain of the products
within our Sonic, FuseSource, DataDirect Connedt@ataServices product sets infringe JuxtaCommisraln its complaint, JuxtaComm
seeks unspecified monetary damages and permanemttine relief.

In May 2010, we filed a response to this complainvhich we denied all claims. The discovery phafthis litigation has commenced. Trial is
scheduled for January 3, 2012.

We intend to defend the action vigorously. While lvatieve that we have valid defenses to JuxtaConataims, litigation is inherently
unpredictable and we cannot make any predictions &g outcome of this litigation. It is possilhat our business, financial position, or
results of operations could be negatively affettg@dn unfavorable resolution of this action.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved)

PART I

Common Stock Split

On December 20, 2010, our Board of Directors apgilay three-for-two common stock split in the forfrmstock dividend. Shareholders
received one additional share for every two shheéd. The distribution was made on January 28, 20 khareholders of record at the close of
business on January 12, 2011. All share and pee stmounts below have been restated to reflectttok split.

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities

The following table sets forth, for the periodsioaded, the range of high and low sale prices torammmon stock. Our common stock trades
on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the synPRGS.

Year Ended November 3 2010 2009

High Low High Low
First Quarte! $ 20.3¢ $ 16.0¢ $ 14.1¢ $ 10.57
Second Quarte 23.2¢ 18.5¢ 15.37 9.7¢
Third Quartel 22.3¢ 17.6¢ 16.0: 13.37
Fourth Quarte 26.3( 17.97 16.82 13.91]

We have not declared or paid cash dividends orcanmmon stock and we do not plan to pay cash didslén our shareholders in the near
future. As of December 31, 2010, our common stoak teld by approximately 4,000 shareholders ofrceopthrough nominee or street name
accounts with brokers.

Information related to our repurchases of our comistock by month in the fourth quarter of fiscall@0s as follows:

(in thousands, except per share de

Total Number ¢ Approximate Dollar Valu

Shares Purchas Of Shares that M¢

Total Numbe Average as Part of Publicl Yet Be Purchase

Of Share Price Paii  Announced Plar Under the Plans

Period: Purchase per Shar or Program Programs (1
September 201 — — — 3 100,00(
October 201( — — — 100,00(
November 201! — — — 100,00(
Total — — — % 100,00(

(1) On October 1, 2010, the Board of Directors autleatjZor the period from October 1, 2010 throught&sper 30, 2011, the purchase
up to $100 million of our common stock, at suchefnthat management deems such purchases to bieetivefuse of casl
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Stock Performance Graph and Cumulative Total Return

The graph below compares the cumulative total $tolcler return on our common stock with the cumutatotal return on the NASDAQ
Composite Index and the NASDAQ Computer Index frteof the last five fiscal years ended Novembe2800, assuming an investment of
$100 at the beginning of such period and the resitvent of any dividends.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return*®

Amang Progress Software Comporation, the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDAG
Computer & Data Processing Index
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* $100 invested on 11/30/05 in stock or index, inidhg reinvestment of dividend

November 30 200t 200¢ 2007 200¢ 200¢ 201(
Progress Software Corporation 100.0( 87.6:2 102.2% 68.7¢ 77.8% 124.5(
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 108.9: 119.1% 68.7% 96.0¢ 111.8¢
NASDAQ Computel 100.0( 107.0¢ 123.9¢ 66.5¢ 107.8: 127.5¢

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table set forth selected financiatadtor the last five fiscal years.

(In thousands, except per share de

Year ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢ 2007 200¢€
Revenue $529,12( $494,13° $515,56( $493,50( $447,06:
Income from operatior 67,67( 51,13: 64,38 57,21¢ 40,94
Net income 48,57 32,75¢ 46,29¢ 42,28( 29,40!
Basic earnings per she 0.7¢ 0.54 0.7t 0.6¢ 0.4¢
Diluted earnings per sha 0.73 0.5: 0.7z 0.64 0.4t
Cash and shc-term investment 322,39¢ 224,12: 118,52¢ 339,52! 241,31!
Total asset 936,82: 798,85( 752,37( 761,82¢ 670,23¢
Long-term debt, including current portic 664 1,02z 1,352 1,657 1,93¢
Shareholdel equity 688,33. 555,45 481,45:; 517,87 444,56
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Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations
Forward-Looking Statements

Certain Statements below about anticipated resuit$ our products and markets, are forward-lookitefements that are based on our current
plans and assumptions. Important information alibetbases for these plans and assumptions andrattat may cause our actual results
differ materially from these statements is contdibelow and in Item 1A. “Risk Factors” of this AraiiReport on Form 10-K.

Overview

We are a global enterprise software company thalbles organizations to achieve higher levels ofrmss performance by improving
operational responsiveness. Operational resporesgdn the ability of business processes and sgdtenespond to changing business
conditions and customer interactions as they o&blgr offer a portfolio of best-in-class, real-tim@ftsvare solutions providing enterprises with
significantly improved operational responsiveneghiw all events and activities that they parti¢gaA key offering is the Progress Respon:
Process Management (RPM) suite that provides cdmepsive visibility and insight into business systeand processes, event processing to
respond to events that could affect performance barsiness process management enabling compardestioually improve business
processes without disruption to their ongoing opena or technology infrastructure. RPM enablegmarises to achieve a higher level of
business performance. We also provide enterprigestdutions (data access and integration) andcatioin development platforms (for
application development and management, and SadSeement). We maximize the benefits of operatisagponsiveness while minimizing
information technology (IT) complexity and totalst@f ownership.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue fronternational operations. These operations aragnly conducted in foreign currencies. As
a result, changes in the value of these foreigreagies relative to the U.S. dollar significantiygact our results of operations. In the first three
quarters of fiscal 2009, the strengthening of th®&.ldollar against most major currencies negatiaéfiycted the translation of our results into
U.S. dollars. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 200%d in the first six months of fiscal 2010, the We@ing of the U.S. dollar against most major
currencies positively affected the translation of esults into U.S. dollars. In the last six mandi fiscal 2010, the stronger U.S. dollar against
most major currencies negatively affected the tedios of our results into U.S. dollars.

For fiscal 2010, we reorganized our segment repgitito three business units: Application Developtri@latforms, Enterprise Business
Solutions and Enterprise Data Solutions. Our bissinmits represent our segments for financial teygppurposes. However, our organization
is managed primarily on a functional basis. Wegsdiedicated costs and expenses directly to eagihdsas unit. We utilize an allocation
methodology to assign all other costs and expetaseach business unit. A significant portion of tbal costs and expenses assigned to each
business unit are allocated. We disclose revendeperating income based upon internal accountietpods. Our product lines are
synonymous with our reportable segments or busineiss. For an understanding of how our internahsuge of product line revenue is
determined, see Note 12 of the Consolidated FimaStatements appearing in this Annual Report amFD-K.

Our product lines comply with open standards, @glhigh levels of performance and scalability anal/jule a low total cost of ownership. Our
products are generally sold as perpetual licerméas;ertain product lines and business activities atilize term and subscription licensing
models. See Item 1 in this Form 10-K for furthesat@tion of our business units.

On January 8, 2010, we acquired Savvion, Inc.jvafaly held business enterprise software compased in Santa Clara, California, for
$49.2 million. Savvion is a provider of businessqass management software. The Savvion productsrigepart of our Enterprise Business
Solutions segment. Our acquisition strategy has beexpand our business and/or add complimentaguets and technologies to our exis
product sets. We expect to continue to pursue aitipuis in fiscal 2011.

The results for fiscal 2010 reflect aggregate westiring charges of $40.0 million taken in connaetivith previously announced restructurings
of our operations during the first and third questd he restructurings were undertaken to enhandeefocus our product strategy, to imprc
the way we take our products to market by becominge customer and solutions driven, and to increasenarket awareness. To accomplish
these goals, and with a view toward better optingizperations and improving productivity and eéfiuty, we reduced our global workforce
approximately 13 percent in the first quarter nastinring and 7 percent in the third quarter restntiieg, primarily within our sales,
development and administrative organizations. Thes&force reductions were conducted across alyggahies and also resulted in a
consolidation of offices in certain locations.
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We also have undertaken an initiative to increagedtment and expand development and administrafierations in India, where we have

a successful development organization for severatsy We expect to increase the size of our demsaporganization in Hyderabad, India,
from about a third of our development resourcesttout half, in order to maximize resources and marmar development costs as we increase
overall R&D headcount and bandwidth in our key prcicareas. Therefore, over the next twelve montiesexpect to move and add additional
product group functions as well as certain admiaiate functions to India. This expansion in Indiéi result in the reduction of our
development and administration operations headdawait other geographies in which we operate.ddi@on, we intend to continue the
consolidation of some of our offices around theldior

Through these initiatives, we expect to incur aggte future pre-tax restructuring charges and g@xexbn-recurring transition expenses of
approximately $5 million to $8 million over the rigwelve months, primarily comprising of costs @verance, transition costs and
consolidation of facilities. The transition expesisee necessary to ramp up the new, more efficegpaibilities ahead of switching over from
existing cost structure.

We believe that existing cash balances togethér fwitds generated from operations will be suffitienfinance our operations and meet our
foreseeable cash requirements (including plannpifat@xpenditures, lease commitments, debt paysremd other long-term obligations)
through at least the next twelve months. To themxhat we complete any future acquisitions, @shgosition could be reduced.

We see the most significant risks for fiscal 20bhtauing to be the macroeconomic climate, whichld@ause our customers to delay, forego
or reduce the amount of their investments in oodpcts or delay payments of amounts due to us.
Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain income arganse items as a percentage of total revenueghargercentage change in dollar amounts of
such items compared with the corresponding peridatie previous fiscal year.

Percentage of Total Reven Percentage Chang
201( 200¢
Compare: Compare:
Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢ to 200¢ to 200¢
Revenue
Software license 36% 36% 37% 1C% (9)%
Maintenance and servic 64 64 63 6 (1)
Total revenu 10C 10C 10C 7 (4)
Costs of revenue
Cost of software license 2 2 2 2 (18)
Cost of maintenance and servi 13 13 13 8 (5)
Amortization of acquired intangibles for purcha:
technology 4 4 3 3 49
Total costs of revent 19 19 18 7 1
Gross profil 81 81 82 7 (5)
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 32 37 38 @) @)
Product developmel 17 19 17 3 6
General and administratiy 10 12 12 (13) (4
Amortization of other acquired intangibl 2 2 1 15 41
Restructuring expens: 7 1 2 * *
Acquisitior-related expense 0 0 0 6 *
Total operating expens 68 71 70 4 3)
Income from operation 13 10 12 32 (22)
Other income, ne 0 0 2 * *
Income before provision for income tay 13 10 14 40 (32)
Provision for income taxe 4 3 5 24 (34
Net income 9% 7% 9% 48% (29)%

* not meaningfu
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Fiscal 2010 Compared to Fiscal 200

RevenueOur total revenue increased 7% from $494.1 milliofiscal 2009 to $529.1 million in fiscal 2010. fabrevenue would have
increased by 6% if exchange rates had been corististal 2010 as compared to exchange ratedécteh fiscal 2009. Excluding the impact
of changes in exchange rates, our revenue incrgaBegipally due to revenue from our Enterprise iBass Solutions product line, partially
offset by lower growth in our Application DevelopnidPlatform products and a decline in our Entegpbsita Solutions product line. Changes
in prices in fiscal 2010 from fiscal 2009 did netve a significant impact on our revenue.

On a segment basis, revenue from our Applicatiomel@@ment Platforms product line increased 1% f&888.6 million in the fiscal 2009 to
$333.2 million in fiscal 2010. Revenue from our &mptise Business Solutions product line increas®d from $85.1 million in fiscal 2009 to
$122.1 million in fiscal 2010. Revenue for the Eptese Business Solutions product line in fiscal@@hcluded $19.5 million of revenue from
the Savvion product line. Organic growth for thedfprise Business Solutions product line, absenatiguisition, was 21% in fiscal 2010
driven primarily by the Apama and FuseSource prodats. Revenue from our Enterprise Data Solufppaduct line decreased 10% from
$83.1 million in fiscal 2009 to $75.0 million instal 2010. For an understanding of how our intemmedisure of product line revenue is
determined, see Note 12 of the Consolidated FimaStatements appearing in this Annual Report amF0-K.

Software license revenue increased 10% from $1m8li®n in fiscal 2009 to $192.6 million in fisc&010. Software license revenue would
have increased by 8% if exchange rates had beestartnin fiscal 2010 as compared to exchange mateffect in fiscal 2009. Excluding the
impact of changes in exchange rates, the increasefiware license revenue was due to an increatbe iEnterprise Business Solutions and
Application Development Platforms product linestj@dlly offset by a decrease in our Enterprise Cdéutions product lines. Software license
revenue from both direct end users and indirechieéls, primarily OpenEdge application partnerstéased in fiscal 2010 as compared to
fiscal 2009.

Maintenance and services revenue increased 6%%84r8.6 million in fiscal 2009 to $336.6 million fiscal 2010. Maintenance and services
revenue would have increased by 5% if exchangs ratd been constant in fiscal 2010 as comparexttaage rates in effect in fiscal 2009.
Excluding the impact of changes in exchange rétesincrease in maintenance and services revensi@rivaarily the result of a slight increase
in our installed customer base for maintenancewatseand growth in our professional services reeemcluding projects related to Savvion.
Maintenance revenue increased 3% or $7.1 millicer tlve previous fiscal year and professional sesvincreased 28% or $10.9 million over
the previous fiscal year.

Total revenue generated in North America incredd#d from $221.2 million in fiscal 2009 to $244.7llion in fiscal 2010 and represented
45% of total revenue in fiscal 2009 and 46% ofltcegenue in fiscal 2010. Total revenue generatadarkets outside North America increa
4% from $272.9 million in fiscal 2009 to $284.5 haih in fiscal 2010 and represented 55% of totakreie in fiscal 2009 compared to 54% of
total revenue in fiscal 2010. Revenue from the A&aific and Latin America regions each increasefiscal 2010 as compared to fiscal 2009,
but such increase was partially offset by a deergasevenue from the EMEA region. Revenue in EME#uld have been essentially the same
if exchange rates had been constant in fiscal 281dbmpared to the exchange rates in effect inlf@09. Total revenue generated in markets
outside North America would have represented 53%taf revenue if exchange rates had been conistéistal 2010 as compared to the
exchange rates in effect in fiscal 2009.

Cost of Software LicenseSost of software licenses consists primarily ofts@d royalties, electronic software distributiawsts, duplication
and packaging. Cost of software licenses incred%edrom $7.8 million in fiscal 2009 to $7.9 millidn fiscal 2010 and remained the same
percentage of software license revenue at 4%. ©Hardncrease was primarily due to higher royaipense for products and technologies
licensed or resold from third parties. Cost of wafte licenses as a percentage of software liceav&mue varies from period to period
depending upon the relative product mix.

Cost of Maintenance and Servic€ast of maintenance and services consists primafitpsts of providing customer support, educasiod
consulting. Cost of maintenance and services iset8% from $66.0 million in fiscal 2009 to $71.8lion in fiscal 2010 and remained the
same percentage of maintenance and services reae@d&o. The total dollar amount of expense inali@d10 increased due to higher usag
third-party contractors for service engagementgjglly offset by lower headcount related costsr Qustomer support, education and
consulting headcount decreased by 2% from the &fisical 2009 to the end of fiscal 2010.

Amortization of Acquired Intangibles for Purchaseethnology. Amortization of acquired intangibles for purch@sechnology primarily
represents the amortization of the value assigméatangible assets for technology obtained intess combinations. Amortization of acqui
intangibles for purchased technology increased@¥h $19.5 million in fiscal 2009 to $20.1 million fiscal 2010. The increase was due to
amortization expense associated with the acquisdfd&avvion.
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Gross Profit. Our gross profit increased 7% from $400.9 millioriscal 2009 to $429.8 million in fiscal 2010ufgross profit as a percentage
of total revenue remained the same at 81% in dacélfyear. The dollar increase in our gross preéis due to the increase in total revenue as
our overall gross profit percentage remained tineesa

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses decreased 7% from2&h#Ron in fiscal 2009 to $168.8 million in fia€ 2010, and
decreased as a percentage of total revenue from®328%. The decrease in sales and marketing egpevas due to the impact of our
restructuring activities in fiscal 2010. Our sadesl marketing headcount decreased 21% from thefdiretal 2009 to the end of fiscal 2010.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses decreased 3% fror8 88lion in fiscal 2009 to $90.6 million in fisc&010, and
decreased as a percentage of revenue from 19%/40Tie decrease was primarily due to the impaouofestructuring activities in 2010,
partially offset by an increase associated withgtweluct development team acquired in the Savviamsgaction. There were no capitalized
software development costs in either fiscal 2008soal 2010, due to the timing and stage of dgwalent of projects that might otherwise
qualify for capitalization under our software cafization policy. Our product development headcaledreased 4% from the end of fiscal 2
to the end of fiscal 2010.

General and Administrativé&seneral and administrative expenses include this od®ur finance, human resources, legal, infolomagystems
and administrative departments. General and adiratiiee expenses decreased 13% from $59.6 millidiscal 2009 to $51.8 million in fiscal
2010, and decreased as a percentage of revenud #¥nto 10%. The decrease was primarily due tantipact of our restructuring activities
fiscal 2010, partially offset by integration andrsition expenses associated with the Savvion sitigni. Our administrative headcount
decreased by 29% from the end of fiscal 2009 teetiteof fiscal 2010.

Amortization of Other Acquired Intangibl. Amortization of other acquired intangibles pritharepresents the amortization of value assigned
to intangible assets obtained in business combinather than assets identified as purchaseddgn Amortization of other acquired
intangibles increased 15% from $9.0 million in #2009 to $10.4 million in fiscal 2010. The incseavas due to amortization expense
associated with the acquisition of Savvion.

Restructuring Expenst. We incurred total restructuring expenses of $40il0on in fiscal 2010 as compared to $5.2 millionfiscal 2009.
During the first quarter of fiscal 2010, our managat approved, committed to and initiated planestructure and improve efficiencies in our
operations as a result of certain management ggahzational changes and our recent acquisitions.réstructuring was undertaken to
enhance and riecus our product strategy, to improve the way aketour products to market by becoming more cust@me solutions driver
and to increase our market awareness. To acconthbsle goals, and with a view toward better opiimgioperations and improving
productivity and efficiency, we reduced our globarkforce by approximately 13 percent primarily it the sales, development, marketing
and administrative organizations. This workforcgugtion was conducted across all geographies aodrasulted in a consolidation of offices
in certain locations. The total costs associatdtl thie restructuring was $26.0 million in fiscall®Q primarily related to employee severance,
excess facilities costs for unused space andldssar extent, termination costs of automobiledsdsr terminated employees. The restructt
charge included $0.3 million of noncash stock-bas@dpensation.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2010, our managet approved, committed to and initiated plangstructure and improve efficiencies in
operations as a result of certain management ggahzational changes. The restructuring was unkiemtso better position the company for
long-term growth, improved profitability, greatesrpetitiveness and improved efficiency across ¢olva business. These initiatives include
the refinement of our product portfolio towardsecand high-growth opportunities, the global cortaiion and redeployment of a portion of
our product development and administrative persipaseets and processes to other global locati@ioffer greater efficiencies to the
business and the continued consolidation of offamesind the world. To accomplish these goals, aitld awiew toward better optimizing
operations and improving productivity and efficignae reduced our global workforce by approximatélyercent primarily within the
development, sales and administrative organizatidhis workforce reduction was conducted acrosgedigraphies and also resulted in a
consolidation of offices in certain locations. Tdwivities related to this restructuring also counéd into the fourth quarter and are expected to
continue through fiscal 2011. The total costs mthcond half of fiscal 2010 associated with tlsérueturing aggregated to $14.0 million.
These costs primarily related to employee severanddacilities related expenses, and were recaétk restructuring expense line item
within our consolidated statements of operatiofie fiestructuring charge included $0.2 million ohoash stock-based compensation. The
excess facilities and other costs represent feslitosts for unused space and termination costatomobile leases for employees included in
the workforce reduction.
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Income from Operatior. Income from operations increased 32% from $51illom in fiscal 2009 to $67.7 million in fiscal 20 and increased
as a percentage of total revenue from 10% to 13%.ificrease in fiscal 2010 as compared to fisca®2@as primarily the result of higher
revenue and costs savings associated with outioésting activities, partially offset by the restturing charges that occurred in the first and
third quarters of 2010. Our total headcount dea@@d8% from the end of fiscal 2009 to the end sxfdl 2010.

Other Income Other income increased from $0.1 million in fis2809 to income of $3.8 million in fiscal 2010. dmcrease was primarily di
to an increase of $3.1 million in the value of faneign currency average rate option contractsctvidio not qualify for hedge accounting
treatment and are marked-to-market each periodaarndsurance settlement gain of $0.9 million edab a pre-acquisition matter.

Provision for Income TaxeOur effective tax rate decreased from 36.0% irafi2009 to 32.0% in fiscal 2010. The decreaseéreffiective ta:
rate was primarily due to a nonrecurring benefi$df million recorded in fiscal 2010. The nonreing tax benefit related to a change in
estimate of our foreign earnings and profits witizo determine the tax characterization of ceiitstgrnational cash repatriation, partially off

by resolution of certain of our uncertain tax piosis related to netting of intercompany balancé® decrease was also due to the mix of profit
within our various tax jurisdictions, partially s#t by a reduction in our research and developuoredit in fiscal 2010 as the credit provisions
in the tax code expired at the end of December 20R8 research and development credit was reimstatihe tax code in December 2010 with
a retroactive effective date of January 1, 201d,\we currently estimate the tax benefit in fiscal 2 to be approximately $3 million. See Note
10 of the Consolidated Financial Statements appgamithis Annual Report on Form 10-K for furthefdarmation.

Fiscal 2009 Compared to Fiscal 2008

RevenueOur total revenue decreased 4% from $515.6 millidiiscal 2008 to $494.1 million in fiscal 2009. tabrevenue would have
increased by 1% if exchange rates had been corististal 2009 as compared to exchange ratedécteh fiscal 2008. Excluding the impact
of changes in exchange rates, our revenue incrgaBegipally due to revenue derived from the pradwrquired as part of the acquisition of
IONA, partially offset by a decrease in the numbkesoftware licenses sold from our major producis professional services engagements
result of the challenging global economic condisiam fiscal 2009. Changes in prices in fiscal 260@n fiscal 2008 did not have a significant
impact on our revenue. On a product line basisyevenue declined in the Application Developmesttfierm and Enterprise Data Solutions
product lines, partially offset by an increase im Enterprise Business Solutions product line.

Revenue from the Application Development Platfoprmduct line decreased 7% from $354.4 million stéil 2008 to $328.6 million in fiscal
2009. Revenue from the Enterprise Business Sokifiooduct line increased 14% from $74.6 milliorigcal 2008 to $85.1 million in fiscal
2009. Revenue from the Enterprise Data Solutiondymt line decreased 7% from $89.3 million in fls2@08 to $83.2 million in fiscal 2009.

Software license revenue decreased 9% from $19#lidnmin fiscal 2008 to $175.6 million in fiscald®9. Software license revenue would t
decreased by 4% if exchange rates had been comsfistal 2009 as compared to exchange ratedéeteh fiscal 2008. Excluding the impact
of changes in exchange rates, the decrease inaeftigense revenue was due to a decrease inveidthés our Application Development
Platforms and Enterprise Data Solutions produetsjmartially offset by an increase in our EntegBusiness Solutions product line. Software
license revenue from both direct end users anddntichannels, primarily OpenEdge application pagndecreased in fiscal 2009 as comp

to fiscal 2008.

Maintenance and services revenue decreased 1%$8a813 million in fiscal 2008 to $318.6 million fiscal 2009. Maintenance and services
revenue would have increased by 4% if exchangs retd been constant in fiscal 2009 as comparexttaage rates in effect in fiscal 2008.
Excluding the impact of changes in exchange ratesincrease in maintenance and services revensi@rvaarily the result of an increase in
our installed customer base, primarily from theuwsitjon of IONA, and renewal of maintenance coatsapartially offset by a 22% decreas:
professional services revenue.

Total revenue generated in markets outside Nortleroa decreased 9% from $299.0 million in fiscad@@o $272.9 million in fiscal 2009 and
represented 57% of total revenue in fiscal 2008oaspared to 55% in fiscal 2009. Total revenue geeerin North America increased 2%
from $216.6 million in fiscal 2008 to $221.2 miltion fiscal 2009. Revenue from EMEA and Asia Paaifecreased by 11% and 3%,
respectively, in fiscal 2009 as compared to fi&208. This decline in revenue generated outsidéooth America was partially offset by a 3%
increase in revenue from Latin America. The de@éashe percentage of business derived from iaternal operations in fiscal 2009 is
primarily the result of the negative impact of figreexchange rates in fiscal 2009, partially oftsgthe success of our newer product lines.
Total revenue generated in markets outside Nortlega would have represented the same percentagebfevenue if exchange rates had
been constant in fiscal 2009 as compared to thieagge rates in effect in fiscal 2008.
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Cost of Software Licensd3ost of software licenses decreased 18% from $8liwmin fiscal 2008 to $7.8 million in fiscal 2@) and decreas
as a percentage of software license revenue frono5%%0. The dollar decrease was primarily due veeloroyalty expense for products and
technologies licensed or resold from third part@sst of software licenses as a percentage of addtlicense revenue may vary from period to
period depending upon the relative product mix.

Cost of Maintenance and Servic€ast of maintenance and services decreased 5%$#80n3 million in fiscal 2008 to $66.0 million instal
2009, and remained the same as a percentage demairte and services revenue at 21%. The dollaease in cost of maintenance and
services was due to lower headcount costs and logage of third-party contractors for service eegagnts. Our customer support, education
and consulting headcount decreased by 9% fromrttegfiscal 2008 to the end of fiscal 2009.

Amortization of Acquired Intangibles for Purchadiezthnology. Amortization of acquired intangibles for purchdsechnology increased 49%
from $13.0 million in fiscal 2008 to $19.5 millidn fiscal 2009. The increase was due to amortinatipense associated with the acquisitions
of Mindreef and IONA, which occurred in the secdradf of fiscal 2008.

Gross Profit. Our gross profit decreased 5% from $423.7 milliofiscal 2008 to $400.9 million in fiscal 2009h& gross profit percentage of
total revenue decreased from 82% in fiscal 2008184 in fiscal 2009. The decrease in our gross fpeficentage was due to the increase in
amortization expense of acquired intangibles facpased technology as described above.

Sales and Marketingsales and marketing expenses decreased 7% fromd&h#iBon in fiscal 2008 to $182.2 million in fiat 2009, and
decreased as a percentage of revenue from 38%%/40T7e decrease in sales and marketing expensedugas changes in foreign exchange
rates and lower headcount costs resulting frommegbucturing activities that occurred in the fouguarter of fiscal 2008 and in the first qua
of fiscal 2009. Our sales support and marketinglbeant decreased by 8% from the end of fiscal 20@Be end of fiscal 2009.

Product DevelopmenProduct development expenses increased 6% fron8 $&ilion in fiscal 2008 to $93.3 million in fisc&009, and
increased as a percentage of revenue from 17%24o TBe dollar increase was primarily due to headtoelated expenses for the
development teams from the Mindreef and IONA tratieas, which occurred in the second half of fis2@08. There were no capitalized
software development costs in either fiscal 2008szal 2009, due to the timing and stage of dgwlent of projects that might otherwise
qualify for capitalization under our software capization policy. Our product development headcanateased 3% from the end of fiscal 2008
to the end of fiscal 2009.

General and Administrativ&seneral and administrative expenses decreasedotfe$82.1 million in fiscal 2008 to $59.6 million fiscal
2009, and remained the same as a percentage olueat 12%. General and administrative expenstscal 2008 include $3.0 million of
professional services fees related to the invetstigaf our historical stock option grant practi@exsl shareholder derivative lawsuits, which
were resolved during fiscal 2009. In addition, tledlar decrease in fiscal 2009 compared to fis@@iRwas due to lower headcount related
expenses, patrtially offset by higher stock-basedpsnsation related to the separation agreemennteeeel into with Joseph W. Alsop, our
former chief executive officer. Our administrativeadcount decreased by 13% from the end of figu@8 20 the end of fiscal 2009.

Amortization of Other Acquired Intangibl. Amortization of other acquired intangibles incged 41% from $6.4 million in fiscal 2008 to
$9.0 million in fiscal 2009. The increase in fis28I09 compared to fiscal 2008 was related to agaiitin expense associated with the
acquisitions of Mindreef and IONA, which occurrexdthe second half of fiscal 2008.

Restructuring Expenst. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, our ragament approved, committed to and initiated plamestructure and
improve efficiencies in our operations as a resfittertain management and organizational changgsanrecent acquisitions. The total costs
associated with the restructuring in fiscal 2008 %&.9 million, primarily related to employee searee, termination costs of automobile let
for terminated employees and excess facilitiesscmstunused space.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2009, our managat approved, committed to and initiated planestructure and improve efficiencies in our
operations as a result of certain management agahizational changes and our recent acquisitions.tdtal costs associated with the
restructuring was $5.2 million in fiscal 2009, pariy related to employee severance and, to afdesdent, termination costs of automobile
leases for terminated employees and excess fasititists for unused space.

Income from Operatior. Income from operations decreased 21% from $64lldomin fiscal 2008 to $51.1 million in fiscal 2@ and

decreased as a percentage of total revenue fromd22%. The decrease in fiscal 2009 as comparéddal 2008 was driven by the decrease
in gross profit of 5% and additional expenses iredias a result of our recent acquisitions. Ol te¢adcount decreased 5% from the end of
fiscal 2008 to the end of fiscal 2009.
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Other Income Other income decreased 100% from $9.6 milliofiscal 2008 to $0.1 million in fiscal 2009. The degse was primarily due to
a decrease in interest income resulting from lamearest rates and lower average cash and shantitsestment balances, and higher foreign
exchange losses.

Provision for Income TaxeOur effective tax rate decreased from 37.5% irefi2®08 to 36.0% in fiscal 2009. The decreaseérefffiective ta:
rate in fiscal 2009 as compared to fiscal 2008 prawarily due to the distribution of income in n@hS. jurisdictions with lower effective tax
rates. See Note 10 of the Consolidated Financ&geBtents appearing in this Annual Report on ForeK I6r further information.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and Short-term Investments

At the end of fiscal 2010, our cash and short-teEwestments totaled $322.4 million. The increas&38.3 million since the end of fiscal 2009
was primarily due to cash generated from operatimusissuances of common stock upon exercise ok sfations, partially offset by cash u
for the acquisition of Savvion and share repurchaSkere are no limitations on our ability to accesr cash and short-term investments.

Auction Rate Securitie:

In addition to the $322.4 million of cash and skerim investments, we had investments with a fdinesaf $39.6 million related to auction r.
securities (ARS) that are classified as long-tetmestments. These ARS are floating rate securitigslonger-term maturities that were
marketed by financial institutions with auctioneedates at primarily 28 or 35 day intervals tovite short-term liquidity. The remaining
contractual maturities of these securities rangmfL3 to 32 years. The underlying collateral of MRS consist of municipal bonds, which are
insured by monoline insurance companies, and studans, which are supported by the federal govemiras part of the Federal Family
Education Loan Program (FFELP) and by the monadlisarance companies.

Beginning in February 2008, auctions for these gées began to fail, and the interest rates festhARS reset to the maximum rate per the
applicable investment offering document. At Noveni®@ 2009, our ARS investments classified as ltarg: investments totaled $47.4 milli
at par value. During fiscal 2010, noncurrent AR&ling $1.2 million were redeemed at par by theess, resulting in a net reduction of the
value of our ARS investments classified as longatervestments to $46.2 million. These ARS are di@skas available-for-sale securities.
During fiscal 2010, a total of $17.7 million of AR#assified as trading securities were repurchas@ar by UBS, the investment firm that
brokered the original purchases of these ARS.

For each of the ARS classified as available-foe.sale evaluated the risks related to the structunkgteral and liquidity of the investment, and
forecasted the probability of issuer default, aarciailure and a successful auction at par or amgadion at par for each future auction period.
The weighted average cash flow for each periodtivas discounted back to present value for eachrisgcBased on this methodology, we
determined that the fair value of our non-curreRSAinvestments is $39.6 million at November 30,8 @hd we have recorded a temporary
impairment charge in accumulated other compreheriasome of $6.6 million to reduce the value of auailable-for-sale ARS investments.

We will not be able to access these remaining fumdi$ a future auction for these ARS is successfid sell the securities in a secondary
market, or they are redeemed by the issuer. As, shieke remaining investments currently lack skert liquidity and are therefore classified
as long-term investments on our consolidated balaheet at November 30, 2010. Based on our casshamtdterm investments balance of
$322.4 million and expected operating cash flowsde not anticipate the lack of liquidity assoaibtéth these ARS to adversely affect our
ability to conduct business and believe we haveatiikty to hold the affected securities throughthé currently estimated recovery period.
Therefore, the impairment on these securities isiclered only temporary in nature. If the crediingof either the security issuer or the third-
party insurer underlying the investments deteregaignificantly, we may be required to adjustdaeying value of the ARS through an
impairment charge.
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Cash Flows from Operations

We generated cash from operations of $96.2 millidiiscal year 2010, $62.8 million in fiscal yedd@®, and $87.2 million in fiscal year 2008.
The components of our cash flows from operationgiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢
Net income $ 48,57 $ 32,75t $46,29¢
Depreciation, amortization and other noncash cls 59,53¢ 61,94: 49,43:
Tax benefit(deficiency) from stock pla 3,41¢ (310 1,12¢
Changes in operating assets and liabili (15,329 (31,629 (9,669

Total $ 96,20 $ 62,75¢ $87,18:

The changes in operating assets and liabilitidisaal 2009 were affected by the payments of assuiabilities acquired as part of the
acquisition of IONA.

Our gross accounts receivable increased by $17libmirom the end of fiscal 2009. Days sales auisling (DSO) in accounts receivable
increased year over year by nine days to 74 dayyeand of fiscal 2010 as compared to 65 dayisea¢nd of fiscal 2009 and 61 days at the
of fiscal 2008. We target a DSO range of 60 to &gsd

Cash Flows from Investing and Financing Activities

We purchased $9.7 million of property and equipniefiiscal year 2010, $7.4 million in fiscal yea®@ and $8.2 million in fiscal year 2008.
The purchases in each fiscal year consisted priynafrcomputer equipment, software and building ssasehold improvements. We financed
these purchases primarily from cash generated @penations.

We purchased and retired 1,496,000 shares of somam stock for $29.3 million in fiscal year 201863000 shares for $5.2 million in fiscal
year 2009, and 5,868,000 shares for $111.5 millidiscal year 2008. We repurchased substantidllisvailable shares under our previc
Board authorized share repurchase program.

On October 1, 2010, our Board of Directors auttestjZor the period from October 1, 2010 throughtSeper 30, 2011, the purchase of up to
$100 million of our common stock, at such timed thanagement deems such purchases to be an efesgvof cash.

On January 8, 2010, we acquired Savvion, Inc.jvafaly-held company, for an aggregate purchaseemi $49.2 million. Savvion is a
provider of business process management softwaee Savvion product lines became part of our Enisg@usiness Solutions business unit.
The acquisition was accounted for as a purchaskaarordingly, the results of operations of Savwi@re included in our operating results
from the date of acquisition. We paid the purcha$ee in cash from available funds.

We had no acquisitions in fiscal year 2009.

In fiscal year 2008, we completed three acquisitiaha total cost of $140.3 million, net of cashuaeed. Each of these acquisitions was
accounted for as a purchase, and accordingly eddts of operations of the acquired companies wetaded in our operating results from the
date of acquisition. In each case, the purchase pras paid in cash from available funds. See H8tef the Consolidated Financial Statems
appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K fattier information

We expect to continue to pursue additional acqaistduring fiscal 2011, although we can make rsu@ces that we will be able to identify
and complete any acquisitions. Our acquisitiontetyahas been to expand our business and/or adpliceamtary products and technologies to
our existing product sets. To the extent that wapete any future acquisitions, our cash positionld be reduced.

Indemnification Obligations

We include standard intellectual property indenm@ifion provisions in our licensing agreements edrdinary course of business. Pursuant to
our product license agreements, we will indemrtifyild harmless, and agree to reimburse the indeethifarty for losses suffered or incurred
by the indemnified party, generally business pasgtioe customers, in connection with certain pateopyright or other intellectual property
infringement claims by third parties with respexbtr
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products. Other agreements with our customers geovidemnification for claims relating to propedgmage or personal injury resulting from
the performance of services by us or our subcotatrsicHistorically, our costs to defend lawsuitsettle claims relating to such indemnity
agreements have been insignificant. Accordinglg,.dktimated fair value of these indemnificationvigions is immaterial.

Liquidity Outlook

We believe that existing cash balances togethér fwitds generated from operations will be suffitienfinance our operations and meet our
foreseeable cash requirements (including plannpifat@xpenditures, acquisitions, lease commitmestructuring obligations, debt payme
and other long-term obligations) through at lebstriext twelve months.

Revenue Backlog

Our aggregate revenue backlog at November 30, 2@%0approximately $174 million, of which $142 nahi was included on our balance
sheet as deferred revenue, primarily related toaqpined maintenance and support contracts. At Nowr3b, 2010, the remaining amount of
backlog of approximately $32 million was composédhalti-year licensing arrangements of approxima&l6 million and open software
license orders received but not shipped of appratéhg $16 million. Our backlog of orders not inahatlon the balance sheet is not subject to
our normal accounting controls for information tiseither reported in or derived from our basi@ficial statements.

Our aggregate revenue backlog at November 30, 288%pproximately $186 million, of which $146 nuhi was included on our balance
sheet as deferred revenue, primarily related taqpined maintenance and support contracts. At Nowr3b, 2009, the remaining amount of
backlog of approximately $40 million was composédhalti-year licensing arrangements of approxima&2 million and open software
license orders received but not shipped of appratéhg $18 million.

We typically fulfill most of our software licenseders within 30 days of acceptance of a purchaderoAssuming all other revenue recogni
criteria have been met, we recognize software $eesvenue upon shipment of the product, or ifvdedid electronically, when the customer
has the right to access the software. Because éinenmany elements governing when revenue is réoagjrincluding when orders are shipp
credit approval obtained, completion of internahttol processes over revenue recognition and ddwéors, management has some control in
determining the period in which certain revenueeiognized. We frequently have open software liearders at the end of the quarter which
have not shipped or have otherwise not met alt¢heired criteria for revenue recognition. Althougk amount of open software license or
may vary at any time, we generally do not belihat the amount, if any, of such software licenskers at the end of a particular quarter is a
reliable indicator of future performance. In aduatiti there is no industry standard for the definitid backlog and there may be an element of
estimation in determining the amount. As such,aicemparisons with other companies may be diffionlpotentially misleading.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements as defileem 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K.

Contractual Obligations

The following table details our contractual obligas as of November 30, 2010:

(In thousands

Payments Due by Peric

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than !

Contractual Obligation Total Yeal Year: Year: Year:
Long-term debt $ 664 $ 38t $ 27¢ $ — $ —
Interest payment on lo-term debi 48 39 9 — —
Operating lease 25,59« 11,28¢ 12,725 1,57( 11
Unrecognized tax benefits ( 1,21¢ — — — —
Total $27,52¢ $ 11,718 $13,017 $ 1,57(C $ 11

(1) This liability is not subject to fixed paynteerms and the amount and timing of paymentsyf avhich we will make related to this
liability are not known. See Note 10 of the Condaled Financial Statements appearing in this AnReglort on Form 10-K for
additional information
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Critical Accounting Policies

Management’s discussion and analysis of finan@atltion and results of operations are based uporansolidated financial statements
which have been prepared in accordance with acow@uptinciples generally accepted in the Unitedé&daf America. We make estimates and
assumptions in the preparation of our consolidéitethcial statements that affect the reported arteoohassets and liabilities, revenue and
expenses and related disclosures of contingentsaasé liabilities. We base our estimates on histbexperience and various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable tibeleircumstances. However, actual results miigrdrom these estimates.

We have identified the following critical accourgipolicies that require the use of significant jodmts and estimates in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements. This listingas a comprehensive list of all of our accountijjges. For further information regarding the
application of these and other accounting policseg, Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statesnappearing in this Annual Report on Fc
10-K.

Revenue Recognitio

Our revenue recognition policy is significant besmawevenue is a key component affecting resultgpefations. In determining when to
recognize revenue from a customer arrangementravefeen required to exercise judgment regardirgatpplication of our accounting policies
to a particular arrangement. For example, judgrisergquired in determining whether a customer geament has multiple elements. When
such a situation exists, judgment is also involvedetermining whether vendor-specific objectivédewnce (VSOE) of fair value for the
undelivered elements exists. Such judgments caarrally impact the amount of revenue that we redora given period. While we follow
specific and detailed rules and guidelines reltédagvenue recognition, we make and use signifiosariagement judgments and estimates in
connection with the revenue recognized in any ripgperiod, particularly in the areas describedvah as well as collectability. If
management made different estimates or judgmeraterial differences in the timing of the recognitiof revenue could occur.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsefstimated losses resulting from the inability oftomers to make required payments. We
establish this allowance using estimates that wieerbased on factors such as the composition cdd¢beunts receivable aging, historical bad
debts, changes in payment patterns, changes toncestreditworthiness and current economic trelfidge used different estimates, or if the
financial condition of customers were to deterierasulting in an impairment of their ability take payments, we would require additional
provisions for doubtful accounts that would inceebad debt expense.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

We have goodwill and net intangible assets of $3#iillion at November 30, 2010. We assess the impait of goodwill on an annual basis
and whenever events or changes in circumstancasatedhat the carrying value of the asset maybeakecoverable. We would record an
impairment charge if such an assessment were teeitedthat the fair value of such assets was less the carrying value. When we evaluate
potential impairments outside of our annual measerg date, judgment is required in determining Weetan event has occurred that may
impair the value of goodwill or intangible assdtactors that could indicate that an impairment et include significant underperformance
relative to plan or long-term projections, sigréfit changes in business strategy, significant hegetdustry or economic trends or a
significant decline in our stock price or in thdugof one of our reporting units for a sustainedqd of time. We utilize either discounted cash
flow models or other valuation models, such as cnave transactions and market multiples, to deite the fair value of our reporting units.
The determination of reporting units also requiresiagement judgment. We consider whether a regautiit exists within a reportable
segment based on the availability of discrete fofrinformation that is regularly reviewed by segmhmanagement. We utilize undiscounted
cash flows to determine the fair value of our igiife assets. We must make assumptions about foasteflows, future operating plans,
discount rates and other factors in those modefferBnt assumptions and judgment determinationddcyield different conclusions that wo
result in an impairment charge to income in theqoethat such change or determination was made.

Income Tax Accounting

We have a net deferred tax asset of $41.1 milliddcvember 30, 2010. We record valuation allowartoegduce deferred tax assets to the
amount that is more likely than not to be realia& consider scheduled reversals of temporaryreéifiges, projected future taxable income,
ongoing tax planning strategies and other matteessessing the need for and the amount of a i@huatowance. If we were to change our
assumptions or otherwise determine that we werblaria realize all or part
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of our net deferred tax asset in the future, anstdjent to the deferred tax asset would be chamertome in the period that such change or
determination was made.

Management judgment is also required in evaluatihgther a tax position taken or expected to bentétka tax return, based on the weight of
available evidence, indicates that it is more {ikiblan not that, on an evaluation of the techmcalits, the tax position will be sustained on
audit, including resolution of any related appemal§tigation processes. Management judgment is dguired in measuring the tax benefit as
the largest amount that is more than 50% likelpaihg realized upon ultimate settlement. If manag@mmade different estimates or
judgments, material differences in the amount aettfor uncertain tax positions would occ

Stock-Based Compensation

We record stock-based compensation expense badéd air value of stock-based awards measurdikeagitant date and recognized over the
relevant service period. We estimate the fair valueach stock-based award on the measurementisiatg either the current market price or
the Black-Scholes option valuation model. The Bi&choles option valuation model incorporates assiomp as to stock price volatility, the
expected life of options, a risk-free interest rate dividend yield. Many of these assumptionshaghkly subjective and require the exercise of
management judgment. If management made diffegimhates or judgments, material differences inam®unt of stock-based compensation
would occur.

Investments in Debt Securitie

We have approximately $39.6 million at fair valpeu( value of $46.2 million) in investments relatedARS, all of which are classified as
noncurrent at November 30, 2010. For each of ous Al evaluate the risks related to the structoigteral and liquidity of the investment,
and forecast the probability of issuer default teuncfailure and a successful auction at par, rdeemption at par, for each future auction
period. Based on the results of this assessmentgeeed either a mark-to-market adjustment in aadated other comprehensive income or an
other-than-temporary impairment charge in otheoine in our statement of operations. If we use difieassumptions or the credit rating of
either the security issuer or the thjpdrty insurer underlying the investments deteresatve may be required to adjust the carrying vafueur
available-for-sale ARS through an other-than-terapoimpairment charge in current period earnings.

Restructuring Charge:

We periodically record restructuring charges résglfrom restructuring our operations (includingisolidations and/or relocations of
operations), changes to our strategic plan, or genie responses to declines in demand, increasists, or other market factors. The
determination of restructuring charges requiresagament judgment and may include costs relatethfdayee benefits, such as costs of
severance and termination benefits, and estimétessts for future lease commitments on exceséitiasj net of estimated future sublease
income. In determining the amount of the facilitidmrge, we are required to estimate such factofstare vacancy rates, the time required to
sublet properties and sublease rates. These eastimiag reviewed quarterly based on known realeestatket conditions and the credit-
worthiness of subtenants, and may result in rengsio established facility reserves.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Performing Step 2 of the Goodwill Impairment Te

In December 2010, the Financial Accounting Stansl&ulard (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update281028, When to Perform St

2 of the Goodwill Impairment Test for Reporting ténwith Zero or Negative Carrying Amounts (Topi®35-Intangibles—Goodwill and
Other (ASU 2010-28). ASU 2010-28 amends the ceti performing Step 2 of the goodwill impairmesst for reporting units with zero or
negative carrying amounts and requires performieg  if qualitative factors indicate that it is radikely than not that a goodwill impairment
exists. We will adopt ASU 2010-28 in fiscal 2012amy impairment to be recorded upon adoptionlvéllecognized as an adjustment to our
beginning retained earnings. We are currently eatalg the impact of the pending adoption of ASU@@B on our consolidated financial
statements.
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Disclosure Requirements Related to Fair Value Measments

In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Stateldipdate No. 2010-06, Improving Disclosures alb@it Value Measurements (Topic
820)—Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASLD26), to add additional disclosures about the diffiecclasses of assets and liabill
measured at fair value, the valuation techniquesimputs used, and the activity in Level 3 fairummeasurements (as defined in Note 3
below). Certain provisions of this update will lféeetive for us in fiscal 2011 and we are curremlsaluating the impact of the pending
adoption of ASU 2010-06 on our consolidated finahstatements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk

We are exposed to a variety of risks, includingndfes in interest rates affecting the return onimuestments and foreign currency fluctuatic
We have established policies and procedures to geamiar exposure to fluctuations in interest ratesfareign currency exchange rates.

Exposure to market rate risk for changes in intarges relates to our investment portfolio. Weéhawt used derivative financial instrument
our investment portfolio. We place our investmenith high-quality issuers and have policies limiting, amotigeo things, the amount of cre
exposure to any one issuer. We seek to limit defeald by purchasing only investment-grade seasitOur investments have an average
remaining maturity of less than two years or irgérate resets of less than 60 days and are phjnfixeéd-rate instruments. In addition, we
have classified all of our debt securities as atdd-for-sale. The available-for-sale classificatieduces the income statement exposure to
interest rate risk if such investments are heldl thitir maturity date because changes in fair @aue to market changes in interest rates are
recorded on the balance sheet in accumulated otimeprehensive income. Based on a hypothetical 1d#érae movement in interest rates,
potential losses in future earnings, fair valueisi-sensitive instruments and cash flows are inenigt Additionally, see further discussion
regarding market risks with our investments in AR@ler Liquidity and Capital Resources in Item Thig Form 10-K.

We generally use foreign currency option contrétds are not designated as hedging instrumentsdgehneconomically a portion of forecasted
international cash flows for up to one year infilteire. Principal currencies hedged include the@geBritish pound, Brazilian real, Japanese
and Australian dollar. We do not enter into deli@instruments for speculative purposes. All fgrecurrency option contracts are recorded at
fair value in other current assets on the balaheetsat the end of each reporting period and exyittén one year. In fiscal 2010, mark-to-
market gains of $3.1 million on foreign currencytiop contracts were recorded in other income instlaéement of operations.

We also use forward contracts that are not destgnat hedging instruments to hedge economicallintpact of the variability in exchange
rates on accounts receivable and collections demated in certain foreign currencies. We generailydt hedge the net assets of our
international subsidiaries. All forward contracte eecorded at fair value in other current assetthe balance sheet at the end of each reporting
period and expire within 90 days. In fiscal 20¥xlized and unrealized losses of $7.2 million fimum forward contracts were recognized in
other income in the statement of operations. Thesses were substantially offset by realized arréalized gains on the offsetting positions.

Foreign currency translation exposure from a 10%entent of currency exchange rates would have ariabitepact on our reported revenue
and net income. Based on a hypothetical 10% adveosement in all foreign currency exchange ratasrevenue would be adversely affec
by approximately 5% and our net income would becaskly affected by approximately 20% (excluding affgetting positive impact from our
ongoing hedging programs), although the actuateffeay differ materially from the hypothetical brsis.
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The table below details outstanding foreign curyeiocward and option contracts at November 30, 20h@re the notional amount is

determined using contract exchange rates:

(In thousands

Notional Value Fair Value
Foreign currency forward contracts to sell U.Slatsl $ 36,85¢ $ 317
Foreign currency forward contracts to purchase doBars 13,831 54
Foreign currency option contracts to purchase do8ars 22,77° 49€
Total $  73,46¢ $ 867

The table below details outstanding foreign curyeiocward and option contracts at November 30, 2088re the notional amount is

determined using contract exchange rates:

(In thousands

Notional Valug Fair Value
Foreign currency forward contracts to sell U.Slats| $ 88,19 $ (19
Foreign currency forward contracts to purchase doBars 8,98: 1
Foreign currency option contracts to purchase do8ars 109,77 2,007
Total $ 206,95 $ 1,99¢
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Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingdrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Progress Software Corporation
Bedford, MA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Progress Software Corporation anddiabes (the “Company”) as of
November 30, 2010 and 2009, and the related calaeli statements of income, shareho’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three y
in the period ended November 30, 2010. These finhatatements are the responsibility of the Comjpamanagement. Our responsibility i
express an opinion on these financial statemerssdoan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBlgUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateteg@resent fairly, in all material respects, tinarficial position of Progress Software
Corporation and subsidiaries as of November 30020 2009, and the results of their operationstlagid cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended November 30, 2010, ifiocority with accounting principles generally acasghin the United States of Americ

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Mowber 30, 2010, based on the criteria establighbddrnal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission and our report datedaky 31, 2011 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal cohbver financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
January 31, 2011
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except share da

November 30 201C 200¢
Assets
Current assett
Cash and equivalen $286,55¢ $175,87:
Shor-term investment 35,831 48,24¢
Total cash and sh«term investment 322,39¢ 224,12:
Accounts receivable (less allowances of $4,980i02and $7,650 in 200! 119,27: 98,87
Other current asse 27,91( 20,19:
Deferred tax asse 14,27¢ 14,43:
Total current asse 483,85¢ 357,61¢
Property and equipment, r 58,20° 59,62¢
Intangible assets, n 83,20¢ 86,38¢
Goodwill 238,34: 218,49t
Deferred tax asse 29,21 30,63¢
Investments in auction rate securit 39,64 40,71«
Other asset 4,35( 5,361
Total $936,82: $798,85(
Liabilities and Shareholde’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt $ 38t $ 35¢
Accounts payabl 13,17¢ 12,40(
Accrued compensation and related ts 44,92( 44,47:
Income taxes payab 4,08 4,08
Other accrued liabilitie 36,14¢ 24,36¢
Shor-term deferred revent 138,96 141,24
Total current liabilities 237,67t 226,92
Long-term debt, less current portir 27€ 664
Long-term deferred revent 2,90¢ 4,511
Deferred tax liabilitie: 2,37¢ 3,44
Other noncurrent liabilitie 5,25¢ 7,854
Commitments and contingencies (note
Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized, 1@@®shares; issued, no
Common stock, $.01 par value, and additional paidappital; authorized, 100,000,000 shares; issndd
outstanding, 66,528,411 in 2010 and 60,906,049 347,60: 247,26!
Retained earnings, including accumulated other ecehgmsive loss of $(9,138) in 2010 and $(3,38!
2009 340,72¢ 308,18
Total shareholde’ equity 688,33. 555,45.
Total $936,82: $798,85(

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

(In thousands, except per share de

Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢
Revenue
Software license $192,56¢ $175,56¢ $192,21°
Maintenance and servic 336,55 318,57: 323,341
Total revenue 529,12( 494,13 515,56(
Costs of revenue
Cost of software license 7,92z 7,77¢ 9,53¢
Cost of maintenance and servi 71,29( 65,967 69,32
Amortization of acquired intangibles for purchasechnology 20,10¢ 19,45¢ 13,03:
Total costs of revent 99,32: 93,20: 91,88¢
Gross profil 429,79¢ 400,93! 423,67
Operating expense
Sales and marketir 168,78t 182,22 195,94°
Product developmel 90,64: 93,26: 87,78¢
General and administrati\ 51,80¢ 59,61: 62,08¢
Amortization of other acquired intangibl 10,44¢ 9,047 6,42¢
Restructuring expens 39,97t 5,21¢ 6,91¢
Acquisitior-related expense 46€ 44C 12¢
Total operating expens: 362,12¢ 349,80 359,28t
Income from operation 67,67( 51,13 64,38:
Other income (expense
Interest income and oth 3,132 2,702 10,38t
Foreign currency gain (los 62€ (2,659 (758)
Total other income, n¢ 3,75¢ 48 9,621
Income before provision for income tay 71,42¢ 51,18( 74,01(
Provision for income taxe 22,851 18,42¢ 27,71«
Net income $ 48,57 $ 32,75¢ $ 46,29¢
Earnings per shar
Basic $ 0.7¢ $ 0.5¢ $ 0.7¢
Diluted $ 0.7¢ $ 0.5% $ 0.72
Weighted average shares outstand
Basic 63,957 60,15* 61,55
Diluted 66,21: 61,56: 64,01¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢
Common stock and additional p-in capital:
Balance, beginning of ye: $247,26! $216,26: $240,64°
Exercise of employee stock optic 87,46! 9,054 18,82(
Issuance of stock under the employee stock purghias: 6,20¢ 5,74C 6,68t
Repurchase and retirement of common s (19,059 (4,799 (72,057)
Present value of payments fo-pricing of stock option — (42 —
Stocl-based compensatic 18,12 21,53¢ 19,31¢
Withholding tax payments related to net issuanaesificted stock unit (1,85¢) (264) —
Tax benefit (deficiency) from stock pla 9,46¢ (22€) 2,84¢
Balance, end of ye: 347,60 247,26! 216,26
Retained earning:
Balance, beginning of ye: 308,18: 265,19: 277,22
Net income 48,571 32,75¢ 46,29¢
Other comprehensive incorr
Unrealized gains (losses) on investme (207) 31¢ (4,68E)
Translation adjustmen (5,546 10,33( (14,18)
Comprehensive incorr 42,81¢ 43,40/ 27,43(
Adoption of new accounting standard for uncertaigositions — — (12
Repurchase and retirement of common s (10,277) (408) (39,459
Balance, end of yei 340,72¢ 308,18 265,19:
Total shareholde’ equity $688,33: $555,45: $481,45.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net income $ 48,57 $ 32,75¢ $ 46,29¢

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Depreciation and amortization of property and emgpt 10,85¢ 11,90( 10,65:
Amortization of intangible asse 30,55¢ 28,50¢ 19,45
Stoclk-based compensatic 18,12 21,53¢ 19,31¢
Tax benefit (deficiency) from stock pla 9,46¢ (22€) 2,84¢
Excess tax benefit from stock ple (6,04¢€) (84) (2,725
Allowances for accounts receival (1,400 — (205)
Deferred income taxe 4,004 (367) (3,956
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffetts from acquisition:

Accounts receivabl (18,97) 2,281 (3,829
Other asset (3,159 (352) 7,26¢
Accounts payable and accrued expel 12,46¢ (26,795 (6,86¢€)
Income taxes payab (7,349 3,30( (5,162)
Deferred revenu (923) (9,696 3,08(
Net cash provided by operating activit 96,20! 62,75¢ 87,18:

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of investments availi-for-sale (38,637) (80,617) (143,499
Sales and maturities of investments avail-for-sale 33,31¢ 72,13 299,32¢
Redemptions at par by issuers of auction rate gea— available-for-sale 1,23¢ 6,94( 55,42¢
Redemptions and sales at par of auction rate sies— trading 17,74( 26C —
Purchases of property and equipm (9,669 (7,369 (8,219
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir (49,186 — (140,28)
Increase in other noncurrent ass 26 (537 (208)
Net cash provided by (used for) investing actigi (45,169 (9,179 62,55(

Cash flows from financing activitie
Issuance of common sto 93,67( 14,75: 25,50¢
Withholding tax payments related to net issuancesiiicted stock unit (1,85%) (264) —
Repurchase of common sta (29,33¢) (5,202 (111,51)
Excess tax benefit from stock ple 6,04¢ 84 1,72¢
Payment of lon-term debi (35%) (330 (305
Net cash provided by (used for) financing actiw 68,16/ 9,04( (84,586
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (8,516) 16,76¢ (22,540
Net increase in cash and equivale 110,68t 79,38¢ 42,60¢
Cash and equivalents, beginning of y 175,87 96,48" 53,87¢
Cash and equivalents, end of y $286,55¢ $175,87: $ 96,48t

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1: Nature of Business and Summary of Significe Accounting Policies
The Company

We are a global enterprise software company thalbles organizations to achieve higher levels ofmss performance by improving
operational responsiveness. We offer a portfolibedt-in-class, real-time software solutions primgcenterprises with significantly improved
operational responsiveness within events and &éeuvihat they participate. Our products are gdlyesald as perpetual licenses, but certain
product lines and business activities also use teraubscription licensing models. We also proygdeduct maintenance, consulting, training,
and customer support services.

Accounting Principles

We prepare our consolidated financial statemerdsaanompanying notes in conformity with accountimigiciples generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Reclassifications

We have reclassified certain amounts for prior g@arconform to the current year presentation. ¥meately disclosed amounts for
withholding tax payments related to net issuanaesifricted stock units in the consolidated statgroéshareholders’ equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows. We separdistyosed amounts for redemptions and sales aifgarction rate securities in the
consolidated statement of cash flows. We also cordd the summary table presentation in Note 2 —edtments by adding cash and money
market funds.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemeaquires management to make estimates and assomittat affect the amounts reporte
the financial statements and accompanying notetsiahcesults could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include caoants and those of our subsidiaries (all of wiidhwholly-owned). We eliminate all
intercompany balances and transactions.

Common Stock Split

On December 20, 2010, the Board of Directors apmtavthree-for-two common stock split in the forfrastock dividend. Shareholders
received one additional share for every two shheéd. The distribution was made on January 28, 20 khareholders of record at the close of
business on January 12, 2011. All share and pee stmounts have been restated to reflect the stk

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of most of our foreign sdiegies is the local currency in which the subsigioperates. For foreign operations where
the local currency is considered to be the funetiaarrency, we translate assets and liabilitiés thS. dollars at the exchange rate on the
balance sheet date. We translate income and exjienseat average rates of exchange prevailinghdwach period. We accumulate
translation adjustments in other comprehensiverme@oss), a component of shareholders’ equity.

For foreign operations where the U.S. dollar issidered to be the functional currency, we transtad@etary assets and liabilities into U.S.
dollars at the exchange rate on the balance shéet\We re-measure non-monetary assets and liebilitto U.S. dollars at historical exchange
rates. We translate income and expense items edgaveates of exchange prevailing during each ge¥he recognize translation adjustments
currently as a component of foreign currency gaitoss in the statement of income.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize software license revenue upon shipofahe product or, if delivered electronically, @hthe customer has the right to acces
software, provided that the license fee is fixedleterminable, persuasive evidence of an arrangesxésis and collection is probable. We do
not license our software with a right of return gaherally do not license our software with
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conditions of acceptance. If an arrangement doesgoconditions of acceptance, we defer recogmitibthe revenue until the acceptance
criteria are met or the period of acceptance hasqeh If software licenses are sold on a subsonifitasis, we recognize the license fee ratably
over the subscription period. We generally recogmeenue for products distributed through appbeoapartners and distributors when sold
through to the end-user.

We generally sell our software licenses with maiatee services and, in some cases, also with ¢omgsservices. For the undelivered
elements, we determine vendor-specific objectivdence (VSOE) of fair value to be the price chargien the undelivered element is sold
separately. We determine VSOE for maintenanceiaatdnnection with a software license based oratheunt that will be separately charged
for the maintenance renewal period. We determin®& $or consulting services by reference to the arhobarged for similar engagements
when a software license sale is not involved.

We generally recognize revenue from software liesrsold together with maintenance and/or consustamgices upon shipment using the
residual method, provided that the above criteaigelbeen met. If VSOE of fair value for the undetad elements cannot be established, we
defer all revenue from the arrangement until théiexeof the point at which such sufficient VSOEedoexist or all elements of the arrangement
have been delivered, or if the only undeliverednglet is maintenance, then we recognize the em@edtably over the maintenance period. If
payment of the software license fees is dependson the performance of consulting services or tresalting services are essential to the
functionality of the licensed software, then weogize both the software license and consulting testng the percentage of completion
method.

We recognize maintenance revenue ratably overtine of the applicable agreement. We generally neizegevenue from services, primarily
consulting and customer education, as the relatedcgs are performed.
Warranty Costs

We make periodic provisions for expected warramigts. Historically, warranty costs have been ingigant.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsefstimated losses resulting from the inability oftouers to make required payments. We
establish this allowance using estimates that wieerbased on factors such as the composition ai¢beunts receivable aging, historical bad
debts, changes in payment patterns, changes tonceistreditworthiness and current economic trends.

A summary of activity in the allowances againstaats receivable is as follows:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢
Beginning balanc $ 7,65( $ 7,944 $ 9,45¢
Benefit to costs and expens (1,400 — (20%)
Write-offs and othe (981) (1,029 (40€)
Translation adjustmen (289) 73t (909)
Ending balanci $ 4,98( $ 7,65( $ 7,944

Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash equivalents include short-term, highly ligumdestments purchased with remaining maturitieicfe months or less. We classify
investments, which consist of auction rate seasifARS), state and municipal obligations, U.S .egoment securities, certificates of deposit
and corporate bonds and notes, as investmentahbleafor-sale, which are stated at fair value.idndl 2009, certain student loan ARS were
classified as trading. We include aggregate urredlholding gains and losses, net of taxes, oradolaifor-sale securities as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income in sharetsildquity.

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

In fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, we paid $t5leon, $16.5 million and $29.8 million in incontaxes, respectively, net of refunds
received. In fiscal year 2008, we received refuindis the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) of $1.8ianilrelated to the filing of original tax
returns and amended tax returns from prior yeagfurirls in fiscal years 2010 and 2009 were insigaif.
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In each of the fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 200&h paid for interest on long-term debt totaled $8itlion.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Our financial instruments that potentially subjestto concentrations of credit risk consist prityaof cash and equivalents, investments and
trade receivables. We have cash investment polidigsh, among other things, limit investments teestment-grade securities. We perform
ongoing credit evaluations of our customers, aedigk with respect to trade receivables is furth@éigated by the diversity, both by
geography and by industry, of the customer base.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of our cash and equivalentsy@ats receivable and accounts payable approxinfateslue due to the short-term nature
of these instruments. We base the fair value oftalom investments on quoted market prices ab#iance sheet date. The fair value of
noncurrent investments is based on a valuationadetbgy utilizing discounted cash flow models (N2)edue to the absence of quoted ma
prices. The carrying value of lortgrm debt (Note 11) approximates its fair value. M&asure and record derivative financial instrumentai
value (Note 4). We elect fair value measurementéotain financial assets on a case-by-case basis.

Derivative Instruments

We record all derivatives, whether designated ifgineg relationships or not, on the consolidatedibed sheet at fair value. We use derivative
instruments to manage exposures to fluctuatiotisdarvalue of foreign currencies, which exist ag p&our on-going business operations.
Certain assets and forecasted transactions aresedpo foreign currency risk. Our objective fordin derivatives is to eliminate or reduce
impact of these exposures. We periodically morotarforeign currency exposures to enhance the teranomical effectiveness of our
foreign currency hedge positions. Principal currestiedged include the euro, British pound, Braailieal, Japanese yen and Australian dc
We do not enter into derivative instruments forcapative purposes, nor do we hold or issue anyed#gvie instruments for trading purposes.

We enter into certain derivative instruments ttandt qualify for hedge accounting and are notglesied as hedges. Although these
derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting,bedieve that such instruments are closely comdlatith the underlying exposure, thus
managing the associated risk. The gains or lossas¢hanges in the fair value of such derivativarinmments that are not accounted for as
hedges are recognized in earnings.

Property and Equipment

We record property and equipment at cost. We repoyderty and equipment purchased in business e@tibns at fair values which are then
treated as the cost. We provide for depreciati@haanortization on the straight-line method overeékmated useful lives of the related assets
or the remaining initial or current terms of legsgkichever is shorter. Useful lives by major astass are as follows: computer equipment
software, three to seven years; buildings and ingmreents, five to thirty-nine years; and furniturel dixtures, five to seven years.

Product Development Costs

We expense product development costs as incurredditvnot capitalize any software development costiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008.

Stock-based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense reflects thedhie of stock-based awards measured at the gaémiatid recognized over the relevant
service period. We estimate the fair value of estok-based award on the measurement date usheg #ie current market price of the stock
or the Black-Scholes option valuation model. ThadRIScholes option valuation model incorporates assiompis to stock price volatility, t
expected life of options, a risk-free interest rate dividend yield. We recognize stock-based carsgion expense on a straight-line basis
over the service period of the award, which is galhefive years for options, and three years fstricted stock units and restricted stock
awards.

Goodwill, Other Intangible Assets and Long-lived Asets

Goodwill is the amount by which the cost of acqdinet assets in a business acquisition exceedddithalue of net identifiable assets on the
date of purchase. We evaluate goodwill or othearigible assets with indefinite useful lives, if afor impairment annually or on an interim
basis when events and circumstances arise thagitedan impairment may have
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occurred. To conduct these impairment tests of gilhdve compare the fair value of a reporting uitits carrying value. If the reporting
unit's carrying value exceeds its fair value, we re@srdmpairment loss to the extent that the carryiage of goodwill exceeds its implied f
value. We estimate the fair values of our reportings using discounted cash flow models or ottauation models, such as comparative
transactions and market multiples. During fiscal@@nd fiscal 2009, we completed our annual tegtngmpairment of goodwill and, based
on those tests, concluded that no impairment ofigiibexisted. We perform our annual testing on &mber 15h of each year. In addition,
there were no triggering events that required &ariim impairment test in fiscal 2010.

Long-lived assets primarily include property andipment and intangible assets with finite livesr@nased technology, capitalized software
and customer-related intangibles). We periodicaijiew long-lived assets for impairment whenevesrgs or changes in business
circumstances indicate that the carrying amoutth@fassets may not be fully recoverable or thatifedul lives of those assets are no longer
appropriate. We base each impairment test on aaosan of the undiscounted cash flows to the cagyialue of the asset. If impairment is
indicated, we write down the asset to its estiméa@dvalue based on a discounted cash flow armlysi

Income Taxes

We provide for deferred income taxes resulting ftemporary differences between financial and taxaiome. We record valuation
allowances to reduce deferred tax assets to themintizat is more likely than not to be realized.

We recognize and measure uncertain tax positidkentar expected to be taken in a tax return utigjza two-step approach. We first determine
if the weight of available evidence indicates tih& more likely than not that the tax positiorlivaie sustained on audit, including resolution of
any related appeals or litigation processes. Thergkstep is that we measure the tax benefit alsutgest amount that is more likely than nc
be realized upon ultimate settlement. We recoginitazest and penalties related to uncertain taxXipas in our provision for income taxes on
our consolidated statements of income.

Comprehensive Income

The components of comprehensive income includaddition to net income, unrealized gains and lossdavestments and foreign currency
translation adjustments.

Accumulated other comprehensive loss is made tipeofollowing components:

(In thousandy)

November 30 201C 200¢
Cumulative translation adjustme $ (4,676 $ 87C
Accumulated unrealized losses on investm (4,462) (4,255

Total accumulated comprehensive | $ (9,139 $ (3,385

The tax effect on accumulated unrealized lossasv@stments was $2.1 million and $2.4 million atvdmber 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Subsequent Events

We evaluated subsequent events through the daténamdur consolidated financial statements weseesd.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Performing Step 2 of the Goodwill Impairment Te

In December 2010, the Financial Accounting Stansl@uolard (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update2810-28When to Perform Ste

2 of the Goodwill Impairment Test for Reporting tdniith Zero or Negative Carrying Amounts (Topi©B5Intangibles—Goodwill and Other
(ASU 2010-28). ASU 2010-28 amends the criteriggrforming Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test feporting units with zero or
negative carrying amounts and requires performieg 8 if qualitative factors indicate that it is radikely than not that a goodwill impairment
exists. We will adopt ASU 2010-28 in fiscal 2012amy impairment to be recorded upon adoptionhvéllecognized as an adjustment to our
beginning retained earnings. We are currently eatalg the impact of the pending adoption of ASU@@B on our consolidated financial
statements.
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Disclosure Requirements Related to Fair Value Measments

In January 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Stateldipdate No. 2010-0@nproving Disclosures about Fair Value Measuremétspic
820)— Fair Value Measurements and Disclosu(ésU 2010-06), to add additional disclosures alibetdifferent classes of assets and
liabilities measured at fair value, the valuatienttniques and inputs used, and the activity in L&Veir value measurements (as defined in
Note 3 below). Certain provisions of this updaté & effective for us in fiscal 2011 and we arerently evaluating the impact of the pend
adoption of ASU 2010-06 on our consolidated finahstatements.

Note 2: Investments

A summary of our cash, cash equivalents and aveialp-sale investments at November 30, 2010 i®kows:

(In thousands

Cos Unrealize« Unrealize« Fair
Security Type Basit Gains Losse Value
Cash $154,71¢ $ — $ — $154,71¢
Money market fund 122,41! — — 122,41!
State and municipal bond obligatic 25,48¢ 207 (10 25,68:
US government and agency securi 10,00( — — 10,00(
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond: 27,20( — (3,560 23,64(
Auction rate securitie- student loan 19,00( — (2,997) 16,00:
Corporate bond 9,41¢ — (22) 9,391
Certificates of depos 18t — — 18t
Total $368,42( $ 207 $ (6,58¢) $362,03¢
Such amounts are classified on our balance shé&&hestmber 30, 2010 as follows:
(In thousands
Cash an Shor-termr Long-termr
Security Type Equivalent Investment Investment
Cash $154,71¢ $ — $ —
Money market fund 122,41! — —
State and municipal bond obligatic 1,92¢ 23,75" —
US government and agency securi 7,50( 2,50( —
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond: — — 23,64(
Auction rate securitie- student loan — — 16,00:
Corporate bond — 9,391
Certificates of depos — 18E —
Total $286,55¢ $ 35,83 $ 39,64

For each of the auction rate securities (ARS), waduated the risks related to the structure, cadidtand liquidity of the investment, and
forecasted the probability of issuer default, aarcfiailure and a successful auction at par or amgdion at par for each future auction period.
The weighted average cash flow for each periodtivas discounted back to present value for eachrisgcBased on this methodology, we
determined that the fair value of our non-curreRSAinvestments is $39.6 million, and the temponamyairment charge recorded at
November 30, 2010 in accumulated other comprehensss to reduce the value of our avail-for-sale ARS investments was $6.6 million.
During fiscal 2010, a total of $17.7 million of AR®assified as trading securities were repurchas@ar by UBS, the investment firm that
brokered the original purchases of these ARS.

We will not be able to access these remaining fumdi$ a future auction for these ARS is successfid sell the securities in a secondary
market, or they are redeemed by the issuer. As, shiebe remaining investments currently lack steorz liquidity and are therefore classified
as long-term investments on the balance sheet\arioer 30, 2010. However, based on our cash ant-ehnim investments balance of
$322.4 million and expected operating cash flowsde not anticipate the lack of liquidity assoaibtéth these ARS to adversely affect our
ability to conduct business and believe we haveatiiity to hold the affected securities throughth currently estimated recovery period.
Therefore, the impairment on these securities is
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considered only temporary in nature. If the cregiing of either the security issuer or the thiedtp insurer underlying the investments
deteriorates significantly, we may be requireddjust the carrying value of the ARS through an pthan-temporary impairment charge to
earnings.

A summary of our cash, cash equivalents, availédiisale and trading investments at November 30928 as follows:

(In thousands

Cos Unrealize Unrealize( Fait
Security Type Basit Gains Losse Value
Cash $115,39¢ $ — $ — $115,39¢
Money market fund 57,61¢ — — 57,61¢
State and municipal bond obligatic 10,37: 272 3) 10,64(
US government and agency securi 11,072 — — 11,072
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond: 27,95( — (4,205 23,74*
Auction rate securitie- student loan 19,50( — (2,537 16,96¢
Certificates of depos 11,65¢ — (1) 11,65:
Subtotal- cash and availak-for-sale securitie 253,56: 272 (6,740 247,09!
Put option related to ARS rights offeril — 1,59¢ — 1,59¢
Auction rate securitie— student loan 17,74( — (1,596 16,14«
Subtotal- trading securitie 17,74( 1,59¢ (1,596 17,74(
Total $271,30: $ 1,86¢ $ (8,33¢) $264,83!
Such amounts are classified on our balance shé&&hestmber 30, 2009 as follows:
(In thousands
Cash an Shor-termr Long-termr
Security Type Equivalent Investment Investment
Cash $115,39¢ $ — $ —
Money market fund 57,61¢ — —
State and municipal bond obligatic — 10,64( —
US government and agency securi 2,50( 8,572 —
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond: — — 23,74¢
Auction rate securitie- student loan — — 16,96¢
Certificates of depos 35€ 11,29¢ —
Subtotal- cash and availak-for-sale securitie 175,87 30,50¢ 40,71«
Put option related to ARS rights offeril — 1,59¢ —
Auction rate securitie- student loan — 16,14+ —
Subtotal- trading securitie: — 17,74 —
Total $175,87: $ 48,24¢ $ 40,71«

The fair value of debt securities at November 31,2and November 30, 2009, by contractual matustgs follows:

(In thousands

November 30 201C 200¢
Due in one year or less ( $70,28¢ $80,39¢
Due after one ye: 14,62 9,82¢

Total $ 84,90¢ $90,22:

(1) Includes ARS which are tendered for inte-rate setting purposes periodically throughout th&ryBeginning in February 2008, auctit
for these securities began to fail, and therefoese investments currently lack shientm liquidity. The remaining final maturities dfetse
securities range from 13 to 32 yes
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Investments with continuous unrealized lossesdss than twelve months and twelve months or greaigtheir related fair values are as

follows at November 30, 2010:

(In thousands

Less Tha 12 Month:
12 Month: or Greate Total Total
Fair Unrealize« Fair Unrealize« Fair Unrealize«
Security Type Value Losse Value Losse Value Losse
State and municipal bond obligatic $ 6,50¢ $ (10 $ — $ — $ 6,50¢ $ (10
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond — — 23,64( (3,560 23,64( (3,560
Auction rate securitie- student loan — — 16,00: (2,997 16,00: (2,997)
Corporate bond 9,391 (22) — 9,391 (22)
Total $15,90: $ (31 $39,64: $ (6,557 $55,54¢ $ (6,58¢)

Investments with continuous unrealized lossesdss than twelve months and twelve months or greaigtheir related fair values are as

follows at November 30, 2009:

(In thousands

Less tha 12 Month:
12 Month: or Greate Total Total
Fair Unrealize« Fair Unrealize( Fair Unrealize«

Security Type Value Losse Value Losse Value Losse
State and municipal bond obligatic $ 83t $ 3) $ — $ — $ 83t $ (3
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond — — 23,74¢ (4,20%) 23,74¢ (4,205)
Auction rate securitie— student loan — — 33,16! (4,127 33,16 (4,127)
Certificates of depos 10¢ (1) — — 10¢ (D

Total $ 944 $ 4 $56,90¢ $ (8,332 $57,85: $ (8,336

The unrealized losses associated with state andcipahobligations and corporate bonds and notesattributable to changes in interest rates.

The unrealized losses associated with ARS are siecliabove. Management does not believe any ureddtisses represent other-than-
temporary impairments based on our evaluation aflalvie evidence as of November 30, 2010.

Note 3: Fair Value Measurements

The following table details the fair value measueais within the fair value hierarchy of our finaglcassets at November 30, 2010:

(In thousands

Fair Value Measurements at the Reporting Date U

Quoted Prices

Active Market: Significant Othe Significan
Nov. 30 Using Identice Observable Inpu Unobservabl
Description 201C Assets (Level ] (Level 22 Inputs (Level 3
Money market fund $122,41! $ 122,41 $ — $ —
State and municipal bond obligatic 25,68! — 25,68! —
US government and agency securi 10,00( — 10,00( —
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond: 23,64( — — 23,64(
Auction rate securitie- student loan 16,00: — — 16,00:
Corporate bond 9,397 — 9,397
Certificates of depos 18t — 18t —
Foreign exchange derivativ 867 — 867 —
Total $208,18t¢ $ 122,41 $ 46,13( $ 39,64
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Immaterial Restatement of Fair Value Measuremer

During the preparation of the fiscal 2010 consdéddinancial statements, we determined that ateNdyer 30, 2009, certain investments
classified as Level 1 measurements within thevalue hierarchy were in error and should have lotessified as Level 2. The investments,
consisting of state and municipal bond obligatid#hS,government and agency securities and certficat deposit, totaled $33.4 million. In
addition, we should have included money market $unfdb57.6 million as part of the Level 1 measuretse

The following table details the fair value measueats within the fair value hierarchy of our finascassets at November 30, 2009 (as rest:

(In thousands

Fair Value Measurements at the Reporting Date U
Quoted Prices

Active Market: Significant Othe Significan
Nov. 30 Using Identice Observable Inpu Unobservabl
Description 200¢ Assets (Level ] (Level 2 Inputs (Level 3
Money market fund $ 57,61¢ $ 57,61¢ $ — $ —
State and municipal bond obligatic 10,64( — 10,64( —
US government and agency securi 11,072 — 11,072 —
Auction rate securitie— municipal bond: 23,74 — — 23,74¢
Auction rate securitie- student loan 33,11z — — 33,118
Certificates of depos 11,652 — 11,652
Put option related to ARS rights offeril 1,59¢ — — 1,59¢
Foreign exchange derivativ (12 — (12 —
Total $149,42! $ 57,61¢ $ 33,35: $ 58,45/

The valuation technique used to measure fair viueur Level 1 and Level 2 assets is a market@gog, using prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions inwmgiidentical or comparable assets. The valuagohrique used to measure fair value for
our Level 3 assets is an income approach, wherexpected weighted average future cash flows wismdnted back to present value for €
asset.

The following table reflects the activity for ounéncial assets measured at fair value using L&wgbuts for fiscal 2010:

(In thousands

Level =

Financia

Asset:

Balance, December 1, 20 $ 58,45¢
Redemptions and repurchases at (18,990
Unrealized gains included in accumulated other qetmgnsive incom 17¢
Realized gain on ARS trading securities includedther income 1,59¢
Realized loss on put option related to ARS rigtitsring included in other incom (2,596
Balance, Nov. 30, 201 $ 39,64!
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The following table reflects the activity for ounéncial assets measured at fair value using L&wugbuts for fiscal 2009:

(In thousands

Level &

Financia

Asset:

Balance, December 1, 20 $65,21¢
Redemption: (7,200
Unrealized gains included in accumulated other cetmgnsive incom 44(
Unrealized gain on ARS trading securities inclugedther income 1,25¢
Unrealized loss on put option related to ARS rigiftering included in other inconr (1,259
Balance, Nov. 30, 20C $58,45¢

Note 4: Derivative Instruments

We generally use foreign currency option contrétds are not designated as hedging instrumentsdgehneconomically a portion of forecasted
international cash flows for up to one year infilteire. All foreign currency option contracts aeeorded at fair value in other current assets on
the balance sheet at the end of each reportinggand expire within one year. In fiscal 2010, marmarket gains of $3.1 million on foreign
currency option contracts were recorded in otheorime in the statement of operations.

We also use forward contracts that are not desgneas hedging instruments to hedge economicallimpact of the variability in exchange
rates on accounts receivable and collections dematsl in certain foreign currencies. We generadiydt hedge the net assets of our
international subsidiaries. All forward contracte aecorded at fair value in other current assetthe balance sheet at the end of each reporting
period and expire within 90 days. In fiscal 20X3lized and unrealized losses of $7.2 million fraum forward contracts were recognized in
other income in the statement of operations. Thesses were substantially offset by realized anéalized gains on the offsetting positions.

The table below details outstanding foreign curyeiocward and option contracts at November 30, 20h@re the notional amount is
determined using contract exchange rates:

(In thousands

Notional Value Fair Value
Foreign currency forward contracts to sell U.Slats| $ 36,85¢ $ 317
Foreign currency forward contracts to purchase daars 13,83: 54
Foreign currency option contracts to purchase to8ars 22,77¢ 49€
Total $  73,46¢ $ 867

The table below details outstanding foreign curyeiocward and option contracts at November 30, 2008re the notional amount is
determined using contract exchange rates:

(In thousands

Notional Value Fair Value
Foreign currency forward contracts to sell U.Slats| $ 88,19 $ (19
Foreign currency forward contracts to purchase daars 8,98: 1
Foreign currency option contracts to purchase do8ars 109,77 2,007
Total $ 206,95 $ 1,99¢
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Note 5: Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following:

(In thousand:)

November 30 201C 200¢
Computer equipment and softw: $ 54,55¢ $ 59,85(
Land, buildings and leasehold improveme 57,301 57,38¢
Furniture and fixture 9,23( 9,90/

Total 121,09¢ 127,14
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 62,88¢ 67,51¢

Property and equipment, r $ 58,207 $ 59,62¢

Note 6: Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Intangible assets are composed of the followingiBaant classes at November 30, 20

(In thousands

Gros:
Carryinc Accumulate: Net Book
Amount Amortizatior Value
Purchased technolog $136,15: $ 80,96: $55,18t¢
Custome-related and othe 75,02¢ 47,004 28,02:
Total $211,17° $ 127,96¢ $83,20¢
Intangible assets are composed of the followingii@ant classes at November 30, 2009:
(In thousands
Gros:
Carrying Accumulate: Net Book
Amouni Amortizatior Value
Purchased technolog $124,85: $ 61,19 $63,66:
Custome-related and othe 59,615 36,89( 22,72
Total $184,46¢ $ 98,08( $86,38¢

We amortize intangible assets assuming no expeetédual value. The weighted average amortizatemog for all intangible assets is

6.6 years, including 6.5 years for purchased teldgyocand 6.8 years for customer-related and otitangible assets. Amortization expense
related to these intangible assets was $30.6 mjl$@8.5 million and $19.5 million in fiscal ye&2810, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Future
amortization expense from intangible assets helaf &ovember 30, 2010, is as follows:

(In thousands

2011 $ 23,93
2012 19,87:
2013 12,87¢
2014 10,33:
2015 9,08:
Thereaftel 7,13¢

Total $83,23:

There were no material impairments of intangibkee#s during any of the periods presented.
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Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for fisgear 2010 by segment are as follows:

(In thousands

Balanct Acquisitions Balanct

Dec. 1 Accounting Translatiol Nov. 30

200¢ Adjustment: Write-down Adjustment: 201C

Application Development Platform segm $ 61,00: $ = = $ 59 $ 61,06¢
Enterprise Business Solutions segn 57,12« 19,70¢ — — 76,82¢
Enterprise Data Solutions segm: 100,36¢ — 81 100,45(
Total $218,49¢ $ 19,70t — $ 14C $238,34:

The increase in goodwill during fiscal 2010 wasitedl to the acquisition of Savvion in January 2010.

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for fisgear 2009 by segment are as follows:

(In thousands

Balanct Purchas Balanct

Dec. 1 Accounting Translatior Nov. 30

200¢ Adjustment: Write-down Adjustment: 200¢

Application Development Platform segm $ 72,99 $ (12,629 — $ 64C $ 61,00¢
Enterprise Business Solutions segir 60,30¢ (3,187 — — 57,12
Enterprise Data Solutions segm: 100,08t — — 283 100,36¢
Total $233,38! $ (15,810 — $ 928 $218,49¢

Note 7: Earnings Per Share

We compute basic earnings per share using the tegigtverage number of common shares outstanding.oiipute diluted earnings per sh
using the weighted average number of common sloartsganding plus the effect of outstanding dilutteck options, using the treasury stock
method, and outstanding restricted and deferrezkstoits. The following table sets forth the caltidn of basic and diluted earnings per share
for each fiscal year:

(In thousands, except per share de

Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢
Net income $48,57: $32,75¢ $46,29¢
Weighted average shares outstanc 63,957 60,15¢ 61,55:¢
Dilutive impact from common stock equivalel 2,25¢ 1,40 2,462
Diluted weighted average shares outstan 66,21: 61,56: 64,01¢
Basic earnings per she $ 0.7¢ $ 0.5/ $ 0.7t
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.7¢ $ 0.5: $ 0.7z

We excluded stock awards representing approxima&t&y0,000 shares, 9,573,000 shares and 5,16had@ssof common stock from the

calculation of diluted earnings per share in fisesrs 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, bechiese tawards were anti-dilutive.

Note 8: Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock

Our Board of Directors is authorized to establish or more series of preferred stock and to fix detgrmine the number and conditions of
preferred shares, including dividend rates, redemgind/or conversion provisions, if any, prefenand voting rights. At November 30,

2010, we have not issued any series of preferaak st
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Common Stock

A summary of share activity is as follows:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢
Beginning balanc 60,90¢ 59,85¢ 63,57(
Shares issue 7,20¢ 1,47¢ 2,15¢
Shares repurchased and reti (2,496 (39€) (5,86¢)
Shares surrendered by employees to pay taxesdatagtocl-based award (86) (18) —
Shares forfeite: — (15) (2
Ending balanc 66,52¢ 60,90¢ 59,85¢

We issued 24,000 shares in each of fiscal 2002846 with a fair value of $0.4 million and $0.5 lioih, respectively, to members of the
Board the Directors.

Restricted stock totaling 7,500 shares with avalue of $0.1 million vested during fiscal 20101 Alitstanding restricted stock has vested as of
November 30, 201(

There were 53,000 deferred stock units (DSUs) antihg at November 30, 2010. Each DSU represesloaire of our common stock. All
DSU grants have been made to non-employee membets Board of Directors. The DSUs are fully vesteddate of grant, but do not have
voting rights and can only be converted into comrstmtk when the recipient ceases being a membedoard. No DSUs were granted in
fiscal 2010.

Common Stock Repurchases

In fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, we purchasddetired 1,496,000 shares, 396,000 shares a68,8@ shares, respectively, of our
common stock for $29.3 million, $5.2 million and1$115 million, respectively.

In fiscal 2010, we repurchased substantially alilable shares under our previous Board authosbade repurchase program. On October 1,
2010, the Board of Directors authorized, for thequefrom October 1, 2010 through September 30,12@1e purchase of up to $100 million of
our common stock, at such times that managememsisech purchases to be an effective use of cash.

Stock Options and Stock Awards

We currently have one shareholder-approved staak fobm which we can issue equity securities, iditlg options, deferred stock awards and
restricted stock. In fiscal 2008, our shareholdgngroved the 2008 Stock Option and Incentive Ridnich replaced the 1992 Incentive and
Nonqualified Stock Option Plan, the 1994 Stock hioe Plan and the 1997 Stock Incentive Plan (ctillely, the“Previous Plans”). The
Previous Plans solely exist to satisfy outstandiptions previously granted under these plans. T8 Plan permits the granting of stock
awards to officers, members of the Board of Dires;temployees and consultants. Awards under th8 P@h may include nonqualified stock
options, incentive stock options, grants of cowdiéid or restricted stock, unrestricted grantsadkstgrants of stock contingent upon the
attainment of performance goals, deferred stoctswamd stock appreciation rights. The options gehptior to fiscal 2005 generally vest over
five years and have terms of ten years. Optionstgdasince fiscal 2005 generally vest over fivergead have terms of seven years. A total of
47,010,000 shares are issuable under these pfankjah 7,209,000 shares were available for gralhavember 30, 2010.

We have adopted two stock plans for which the aggirof shareholders was not required: the 2002 Nalified Stock Plan (2002 Plan) and
the 2004 Inducement Stock Plan (2004 Plan). Th Z08n permits the granting of stock awards to executive officer employees and
consultants. Executive officers and members oBibard of Directors are not eligible for awards unitie 2002 Plan. Awards under the 2002
Plan may include nongualified stock options, grarfitsonditioned or restricted stock, unrestricteangs of stock, grants of stock contingent
upon the attainment of performance goals and sapgkeciation rights. The options granted priofigodl 2005 generally vest over five years
and have terms of ten years. The options grantex iscal 2005 generally vest over five years laank terms of seven years. A total of
9,750,000 shares are issuable under the 2002 #flamich 731,000 shares were available for grad@atember 30, 2010.
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The 2004 Plan is reserved for persons to whom weigsae securities as an inducement to become getploy us pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the NASDAQ Stock Market. Awards unttee 2004 Plan may include nonqualified stockansi grants of conditioned or
restricted stock, unrestricted grants of stockntgraf stock contingent upon the attainment ofgrenince goals and stock appreciation rights.
The options granted prior to fiscal 2005 generadigt over five years and have terms of ten yedrs.options granted since fiscal 2005
generally vest over five years and have termsaésgears. A total of 1,500,000 shares are issuaider the 2004 Plan, of which 540,000
shares were available for grant at November 300201

A summary of stock option activity under all plaass follows:

(In thousands, except per share de

Weightec
Numbe Average
of Share Exercise Pric
Options outstanding, December 1, 2( 15,16¢ $ 15.3¢
Grantec 2,50¢ 21.4(
Exercisec (6,297) 13.91
Cancelec (1,505 17.41
Options outstanding, November 30, 2( 9,87¢ $ 17.5¢
For various exercise price ranges, characterisficgitstanding and exercisable stock options atdither 30, 2010 are as follows:
(Number of shares in thousanc
Options Outstandin Options Exercisabl
Weightec
Average Weightec Weightec
Range of Number o Remaining Average Number o Average
Exercise Price Share Life (in years Exercise Pric Share Exercise Pric
$ 8.54-14.2¢ 1,86¢ 3.6€ $ 12.0z 1,32C $ 11.61
14.3(-15.3¢ 1,89: 3.7¢ 14.71 1,43¢ 14.7(
15.9:-19.5¢ 1,76t 4.67 17.3¢ 872 17.2C
19.9¢-20.7¢ 1,98¢ 3.21 20.3¢ 1,53¢ 20.4:
21.32-26.02 2,364 5.82 21.9¢ 67€ 21.5¢
$ 8.54-26.02 9,87¢ 4.2¢ $ 17.5¢ 5,84: $ 16.67
Options outstanding that have vested and thatxgrecéed to vest as of November 30, 2010 are aswell
(In thousands, except per share de
Weightec
Average Weightec Aggregat
Outstandin Remaining Average Intrinsic
Options Life (in years Exercise Pric Value (1
Vested 5,84: BI3E $ 16.67 $52,58¢
Expected to ves 4,03: 5.6€ 18.7¢ 27,84:
Total 9,87¢ 4.2¢ $ 17.5¢ $80,42’

(1) The aggregate intrinsic value was calculated bagetie difference between the closing price ofstack on November 30, 2010
$25.68 and the exercise prices for a-the-money options outstandin
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A summary of the status of our restricted stocksuaf November 30, 2010 is as follows:

(In thousands, except per share de

Weighted Averag

Numbe Grant dat

of Share Fair value

Restricted stock units outstanding, December 19: 44C $ 14.7¢
Grantec 665 21.4¢
Issued (285) 16.9¢
Cancelec (98 17.07
Restricted stock units outstanding, November 3Q0: 722 $ 19.72

Each restricted stock unit represents one shazerafmon stock. The restricted stock units vest samually over a three-year period.

The fair value of outright stock awards, restricséolck awards, restricted stock units and DSUsgimkto the closing price of our common
stock on the date of grant.

The following table provides the classificationstéck-based compensation expense as reflected toasgolidated statements of income:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢
Cost of software license $ 29 $ 37 $ 72
Cost of maintenance and servit 913 94¢ 1,17¢
Sales and marketir 5,49¢ 5,83( 6,98
Product developmel 4,20( 4,041 4,58¢
General and administrati 6,94¢ 10,68( 6,50¢
Restructuring 53t — —

Total stocl-based compensation expel 18,12: 21,53¢ 19,31¢
Income tax benefit included in provision for incotages (4,970 (5,167 (4,632)

Total stocl-based compensation expense, net o $13,15: $16,37¢ $14,68t¢

We estimated the fair value of options and emplateek purchase plan shares granted in fiscal y&&8, 2009 and 2008 on the measuret
dates using the Black-Scholes option valuation rhaitd the following weighted average assumptions:

Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢
Stock Purchase Pla
Expected volatility 27.1% 30.7% 23.4%
Risk-free interest rat 0.6% 0.8% 4.1%
Expected life in year 15 2.1 1.3
Expected dividend yiel None None None
Stock Options
Expected volatility 27.2% 26.% 24.%
Risk-free interest rat 2.2% 2.0% 2.8%
Expected life in year 4.8 4.7 4.8
Expected dividend yiel None None None

For each option award, the expected life in yemtsased on historical exercise patterns and pasingetermination behavior. Expected
volatility is based on historical volatility of ostock, and the risk-free interest rate is basetherJ.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at theetim
of grant. We do not currently pay cash dividend®oncommon stock and do not anticipate doing séhfe foreseeable future. Accordingly,
our expected dividend yield is zero.

For each stock purchase plan award, the expedteih lyears is based on the period of time betwkerbeginning of the offering period and
date of purchase, plus an additional holding peoidithree months. Expected volatility is based on
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historical volatility of the company’s stock, arftktrisk-free interest rate is based on the U.Saduey yield curve in effect at each purchase
period.

Based on the above assumptions, the weighted avesiignated fair value of options granted in figedrs 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $5.84,
$4.23 and $4.31 per share, respectively. We anedifiiz estimated fair value of options to expenss the vesting period using the straitihe
method. The weighted average estimated fair valustares issued under our 1991 Employee Stockh&sed?lan (ESPP) in fiscal years 2(
2009 and 2008 was $5.97, $4.19 and $4.83 per stesectively. We amortize the estimated fair valighares issued under the ESPP to
expense over the vesting period using a gradeihgesiodel.

Other reasonable assumptions about these factold povide different estimates of fair value. Fetehanges in stock price volatility, life of
options, interest rates and dividend practicesnyf, may require changes in our assumptions, wtochd materially affect the calculation of
fair value.

Total unrecognized stock-based compensation expaasef expected forfeitures, related to unvestedk options and unvested restricted
stock awards amounted to $29.9 million at Noven®@gr2010. These costs are expected to be recogovard weighted average period of
3.0 years.

During fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008 the follayctivity occurred under our plans:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 201( 200¢ 200¢
Total intrinsic value of stock options on date eiszd $47,39¢ $ 2,56¢ $14,46.
Total fair value of DSUs on date vesi — — 69t
Total fair value of restricted stock awards on dedstec 131 82 —
Total fair value of restricted stock units on degsted 6,20z 1,57¢ —

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The ESPP permits eligible employees to purchage apnaximum of 7,350,000 shares of our commorkdtaough accumulated payroll
deductions. The ESPP has a 27-month offering pedotprised of nine three month purchase periods.plinchase price of the stock is equal
to 85% of the lesser of the market value of su@reshat the beginning of a 27-month offering pedothe end of each three-month segment
within such offering period. If the market priceaaty of the nine purchase periods is less thamtméet price on the first date of the 27-month
offering period, subsequent to the purchase, tfexinf period is cancelled and the employee isredtento a new 27-month offering period
with the then current market price as the new Ipaise. We issued 604,000 shares, 570,000 share45hd00 shares with weighted average
purchase prices of $10.28, $10.08 and $14.87 @@eshespectively, in fiscal years 2010, 2009 &0@B2 respectively. At November 30, 2010,
approximately 881,000 shares were available aretved for issuance under the ESPP.

Note 9: Retirement Plan

We maintain a retirement plan covering all U.S. Epes under Section 401(k) of the Internal Reveboge. Company contributions to the
plan are at the discretion of the Board of Direst@nd totaled approximately $4.6 million, $4.0 railland $5.2 million for fiscal years 2010,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

Note 10: Income Taxes

The components of pretax income are as follows:

(In thousand?)

Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢
United State! $54,56¢ $32,27¢ $49,46:
Foreign 16,86: 18,90 24,54¢

Total $71,42¢ $51,18( $74,01(

48




Table of Contents

The provisions for income taxes are comprised effthiowing:

(In thousand:)

Year Ended November 3 201( 200¢ 200¢
Current:
Federa $11,53¢ $10,11¢ $20,13:
State 1,92¢ 1,38: 1,63¢
Foreign 5,392 7,29:% 9,90(
Total current 18,85: 18,79: 31,67(
Deferred:
Federa 4,817 1,94¢ (2,499
State 48 (36) (454)
Foreign (867) (2,279 (2,009
Total deferrec 4,00/ (367) (3,956
Total $22,857 $18,42¢ $27,71:¢

The tax effects of significant items comprising deferred taxes are as follows:

(In thousands

November 30 201( 200¢
Deferred tax asset

Accounts receivabl $ 59¢ $ 1,541
Other current asse 81t 1,11¢
Capitalized research cos 2,69 4,12z
Accrued compensatic 1,36¢ 1,90z
Accrued liabilities and othe 10,72 9,45¢
Deferred revenu 2,74 2,97¢
Stoclk-based compensatic 8,66 12,97:
Tax credit and loss carryforwar 50,33¢ 40,58
Gross deferred tax assi 77,94¢ 74,67(
Valuation allowanct (21,56¢) (21,66%)
Total net deferred tax asst 56,37¢ 53,00z

Deferred tax liabilities
Goodwill (9,48)) (8,18))
Depreciation and amortizatic (5,787 (3,195
Total deferred tax liabilitie (15,269 (11,376
Total $41,11¢ $ 41,62¢

The valuation allowance primarily applies to neeigting loss carryforwards and unutilized tax dsedh jurisdictions or under conditions
where realization is not assured. The decreadeinaluation allowance during fiscal 2010 primar@yated to the utilization of net operating
loss carryforwards.

At November 30, 2010, we have net operating losyfawards of $79.5 million expiring on varioustda through 2024 and $29.4 million that
may be carried forward indefinitely. At November, 2010, we have tax credit carryforwards of apprately $12.3 million expiring on
various dates through 2029 and $1.3 million thay i carried forward indefinitely.
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A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory raddhe effective tax rate is as follows:

Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢
Tax at U.S. federal statutory r¢ 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
Foreign rate difference (2.9 2.7 1.7
State income taxes, n 1.8 1.7 1.7
Research credit (0.2 (3.7 (2.9
Tax-exempt interes (0.2 (0.5 (2.7
Nondeductible sto-based compensatic 2.3 5.2 3.2
Nonrecurring benefit from change in estimate framégs and profit (3.5 — —
Other (0.9 — 0.¢
Total 32.(% 36.(% 37.5%

The calculation of our tax liabilities involves dieg with uncertainties in the application of compltax regulations in a multitude of
jurisdictions across our global operations. We gaize and record potential tax liabilities for @aigated tax audit issues in various
jurisdictions based on our estimate of whether,taecextent to which, additional taxes will be diée adjust these reserves in lighi

changing facts and circumstances; however, dugetcamplexity of some of these uncertainties, ttimate resolution may result in a paym
that is materially different from our current estita of the tax liabilities. If our estimate of tigedilities proves to be less than the ultimate
assessment, an additional charge to expense wesldt.rif payment of these amounts ultimately psoteebe less than the recorded amounts,
the reversal of the liabilities would result in @me tax benefits being recognized in the periodnulie determine the liabilities are no longer
necessary.

A reconciliation of the balance of our unrecognitax benefits is as follows:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 201( 200¢
Balance, beginning of ye. $ 3,281 $ 4,78¢
Settlements with tax authoriti (2,736 (1,329
Tax positions acquire 20C —
Lapses due to expiration of the statute of limitasi (526) (180
Balance, end of ye: $ 1,21¢ $ 3,281

We recognize interest and penalties related torteiogax positions as a component of our provid@rincome taxes. In fiscal years 2010 and
2009, we included $0.1 million and $0.2 millionspectively, of estimated interest and penaltiehénprovision for income taxes. We had
accrued $0.2 million and $0.9 million of estimateterest and penalties at November 30, 2010 and:Mber 30, 2009, respectively.

We have not provided for U.S. income taxes on thdistributed earnings of non-U.S. subsidiarieshase earnings have been permanently
reinvested or would be principally offset by foneigx credits. Cumulative undistributed foreignniags were approximately $28.0 million at
November 30, 201(

During fiscal 2009, we settled our appeal with litternal Revenue Service related to audits forquerithrough fiscal 2005 with no material
impact to our consolidated financial statementateStaxing authorities are currently examining iooome tax returns for years through fiscal
2008. Our federal and state income tax returns haea examined or are closed by statute for alisye@or to fiscal 2007, and we are no
longer subject to audit for those periods.

Tax authorities for certain non-U.S. jurisdicticare also examining returns affecting unrecogniagdenefits, none of which are material to
our balance sheet, cash flows or statements ofricdVith some exceptions, we are generally no Ibaghkject to tax examinations in nahS.
jurisdictions for years prior to fiscal 20C

We believe that we have adequately provided forreagonably foreseeable outcomes related to owrudits and that any settlement will not
have a material adverse effect on our consolidiwadicial position or results of operations. Howewkere can be no assurances as to the
possible outcomes.
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Note 11: Long-term Debt, Commitments and Contingeries
Long-term Debt

In connection with the purchase of a building adjgdo our headquarters building, we were requioegssume the existing mortgage under the
terms of the agreement. The mortgage, securedebdyuiiding, had a remaining principal balance o#%aillion with a fixed annual interest

rate of 8.05% at the time of the purchase. We repgy the entire outstanding balance at any timgestuto a potential penalty based on
interest rates in effect at that time. The finalpant is due in June 2012.

Future principal and interest payments are asvaio

(In thousands

Principa Interes

2011 $ 38t $ 39
2012 27¢€ 9
Total $ 664 $ 48

Leasing Arrangements

We lease certain facilities and equipment undercantelable operating lease arrangements. Futurienonin rental payments under these
leases are as follows at November 30, 2010:

(In thousands

2011 $11,28¢
2012 8,401
2013 4,32¢
2014 94t
2015 62€
Thereaftel 11

Total $ 25,59

Total rent expense, net of sub-rental income whichsignificant, under operating lease arrangesests approximately $11.3 million,
$12.4 million and $11.2 million in fiscal years 202009 and 2008, respectively.

Guarantees and Indemnification Obligations

We include standard intellectual property indenmaifion provisions in our licensing agreements sxdhdinary course of business. Pursuant to
our product license agreements, we will indemnifyld harmless, and agree to reimburse the indeeahifarty for losses suffered or incurred
by the indemnified party, generally business pasgtioe customers, in connection with certain pateopyright or other intellectual property
infringement claims by third parties with respecbtr products. Other agreements with our customrengde indemnification for claims
relating to property damage or personal injury itésgifrom the performance of services by us or swlscontractors. Historically, our costs to
defend lawsuits or settle claims relating to surtemnity agreements have been insignificant. Adogig, the estimated fair value of these
indemnification provisions is immaterial.

Legal Proceedings

We are subject to various legal proceedings arithsleeither asserted or unasserted, which arifieeiordinary course of business. While the
outcome of these claims cannot be predicted wittaicgy, management does not believe that the owoof any of these other legal matters
will have a material adverse effect on our consdéd financial position or results of operations.

On January 21, 2010, JuxtaComm Technologies (Juxtad) filed a complaint in the Eastern District @XBs against Progress Software, two
of our subsidiaries and 19 other defendants, altegifringement of JuxtaComm'’s US patent 6,195,663 stem for Transforming and
Exchanging Data Between Distributed Heterogeneammpliter Systems”). In its complaint, JuxtaCommgakethat certain of the products
within our Sonic, FuseSource, DataDirect ConnedtataServices
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product sets infringe JuxtaComm'’s patent. In ithipkaint, JuxtaComm seeks unspecified monetary damagd permanent injunctive relief.

In May 2010, we filed a response to this complainvhich we denied all claims. The discovery phafthis litigation has commenced. Trial is
scheduled for January 3, 2012.

We intend to defend the action vigorously. While lvatieve that we have valid defenses to JuxtaConetaims, litigation is inherently
unpredictable and we cannot make any predictions #ge outcome of this litigation. It is possiltheat our business, financial position, or
results of operations could be negatively affettg@dn unfavorable resolution of this action.

Note 12: Business Segments and International Opefiahs

Operating segments, as defined under U.S. genexratigpted accounting principles (GAAP), are comptsef an enterprise about which
discrete financial information is available andulegly reviewed by the chief operating decision erak deciding how to allocate resources
and assess performance. We internally report segubiur chief operating decision maker on botlugiress unit basis and a functional basis.
Our business units represent our segments fordiabreporting purposes.

However, our organization is managed primarily darectional basis. We assign dedicated costs apdreses directly to each business unit.
We utilize an allocation methodology to assignodiier costs and expenses to each business ungn#icant portion of the total costs and
expenses assigned to each business unit are atfodsle disclose revenue and operating income hgsadinternal accounting methods. Our
chief operating decision maker is our Chief Exe@itDfficer.

For fiscal 2010, we have reorganized our interepbrting into three business units, each of whieletthe criteria for segment reporting:

(1) Application Development Platforms, which inchsdthe OpenEdge, Orbix and ObjectStore product (@t&Enterprise Business Solutions,
which includes the Apama, Sonic, Actional, Savvéml FuseSource product sets; and (3) Enterprise 8@utions, which includes the
DataDirect Connect, DataDirect Shadow and DataSesvyproduct sets. Segment data for 2009 has belassified to the current year
presentation. Our product lines are synonymous atthreportable segments or business units.

We do not manage our assets or capital expendibyresgment or assign other income and income tax®sgments. We manage and report
such items on a consolidated company basis.

The following table provides revenue and incomenfi@perations from our reportable segments:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 201C 200¢ 200¢
Revenue
Application Development Platform segmi $333,19° $328,55( $354,37:
Enterprise Business Solutions segrr 122,09 85,13¢ 74,58¢
Enterprise Data Solutions segm 75,03¢ 83,11¢ 89,29¢
Reconciling item: (1,212) (2,677 (2,696
Total $529,12( $494,13° $515,56(
Income (loss) from operation
Application Development Platform segmi $209,64. $170,85: *
Enterprise Business Solutions segrr (40,11 (55,085 *
Enterprise Data Solutions segm (12,917 (6,410 *
Reconciling item: (88,949 (58,224 *
Total $ 67,67( $ 51,13: *

* We did not include income from operations for fis2@08 as it is not practical to restate the data ihe current structur

The reconciling items within revenue represent pase accounting adjustments for deferred reveratdeto acquisitions, as such amounts
are not deducted from internal measurements of sagrevenue. Amounts included under reconciling#evithin income from operations
represent amortization of acquired intangibles;lsioased compensation, restructuring and acquisigtated expenses, purchase accounting
adjustments for deferred revenue and certain uretal administrative expenses.
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Our revenues are derived from licensing our pragluantd from related services, which consist of meaiance and consulting and education.
Information relating to revenue from external cas¢os by revenue type is as follows:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 201( 200¢ 200¢
Software license $192,56¢ $175,56¢ $192,21°
Maintenance 286,20° 279,13¢ 272,53
Professional service 50,34¢ 39,43: 50,811

Total $529,12( $494,13° $515,56(

In the following table, revenue attributed to No#tinerica includes sales to customers in the Uriiiedes and Canada and licensing to certain
multinational organizations, substantially all dfiieh is invoiced from the United States. RevenoenfEurope, Middle East and Africa
(EMEA), Latin America and Asia Pacific includes gimients to customers in each region, not includargain multinational organizations, plus
export shipments into each region that are biltechfthe United States. Information relating to rawe from external customers from different
geographical areas is as follows:

(In thousands

Year Ended November 3 201( 200¢ 200¢
North America $244,64¢ $221,17: $216,57:
EMEA 204,38( 208,00: 234,03°
Latin America 39,94¢ 33,88 32,90:
Asia Pacific 40,14+ 31,07¢ 32,04

Total $529,12( $494,13° $515,56(

Revenue from the United Kingdom totaled $56.0 wmil]i$57.9 million and $68.8 million for fiscal ysa2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. No
other country outside of the United States accalfdemore than 10% of our consolidated total rexeim any year presented. Long-lived
assets totaled $54.7 million, $55.3 million and ga@illion in the United States and $7.8 millio®. % million and $8.6 million outside of the
United States at the end of fiscal years 2010, 20@P2008, respectively. No individual country ddesof the United States accounted for nr
than 10% of our consolidated long-lived assets.g-lived assets exclude goodwill and intangible &ssehich are not allocated to specific
geographies as it is impracticable to do so.

Note 13: Business Combinations

On January 8, 2010, we acquired all of the equitgrests in Savvion, Inc., a privately-held compahgough a merger of Savvion with a
wholly-owned subsidiary for an aggregate purchasemf $49.2 million. Savvion is a provider of Iinmsss process management software. The
purpose of the acquisition was to expand the proffierings within the Enterprise Business Solusitrusiness unit. The acquisition was
accounted for as a purchase, and accordingly ggdts of operations of Savvion are included inaperating results from the date of
acquisition. We paid the purchase price in casimfavailable funds.

At the beginning of fiscal 2010, we adopted thdsed accounting standard for business combinatibims.most significant changes in the
revised standard affecting the accounting for @guésition of Savvion (in contrast to our prior aditions) are that we (i) capitalized in-
process research and development assets of $2id@nn(ii) expensed acquisition-related transactosts of $0.4 million: and (iii) recognized
all pre-acquisition loss and gain contingencietheair acquisition-date fair values. In additionanes in accounting for deferred tax asset
valuation allowances and acquired income tax uatgies after the measurement period will be reczaghin earnings rather than as
adjustments to the cost of acquisition. We havienaséd the fair value of all assets acquired aagilities assumed in the transaction.
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The final allocation of the purchase price is dfes:

(In thousandy)

Total Life (in years
Accounts receivable (: $ 5,12(
Deferred tax asse 2,927
Other asset 854
Acquired intangible asse 28,00( 7 to 9 year
Goodwill 19,70¢
Accounts payable and other liabiliti (4,417
Liabilities assumed, net of other ass (3,007
Net cash pait $49,18¢

(1) Accounts receivable have been recorded at théinatgd fair value, which consists of the gross ant®receivable assumed of
$5.4 million, reduced by a fair value reserve of3¥@illion representing the portion of contractyalived accounts receivable which we do
not expect to be collecte

We recorded the excess of the purchase price beadéntified tangible and intangible assets aslgilb We believe that the investment value
of the synergy created as a result of this acqoisitiue to future product and solution offerinigas principally contributed to a purchase price
that resulted in the recognition of approximate® $nillion of goodwill, which is not deductible féax purposes.

We have not included pro forma financial informatfor Savvion as the historical operations weresignificant to our consolidated financial
statements.

Fiscal 2008 Transactions:

On February 5, 2008, we acquired, through a wkmlned subsidiary, the stock of Xcalia SA (Xcalia) a cash payment of

$4.9 million, net of cash acquired. Xcalia is adierin providing data access and integration forise oriented architectures. The
purpose of the acquisition was to expand the prolfierings within the Enterprise Data Solutionsghuct line. We accounted for
the acquisition as a purchase, and accordinglyineladed the results of operations of Xcalia in operating results from
February 5, 2008, the date of acquisition. In addjtwe paid direct transaction costs related i® dlaquisition of $0.9 million. We
paid the purchase price in cash from available $u

On June 13, 2008, we acquired substantiallyfah® assets and assumed certain liabilities ofdvéief, Inc. (Mindreef) for a cash
payment of $6.0 million, net of cash acquired. Mawef develops and sells quality assurance andatadiu solutions for SOA
deployments. The purpose of the acquisition waspand the capabilities of our Actional product ¥é¢ accounted for the
acquisition as a purchase, and accordingly, weided the results of operations of Mindreef in cperating results from June 13,
2008, the date of acquisition. In addition, we pdii@ct transaction costs related to this acqoisitf $0.2 million. We paid the
purchase price in cash from available fur

On September 12, 2008, we completed the acauigiti IONA Technologies PLC (IONA) for $4.05 perasé in cash, representing
a cash payment of approximately $125.1 million,afetash acquired. IONA is a provider of SOA infrasture products and
services. The purpose of the acquisition was tadea our Application Development Platforms and Eprise Infrastructure
product lines. We accounted for the acquisitioa asirchase and accordingly, we included the restiltperations of IONA in our
operating results from September 12, 2008, the afaequisition. In addition, we paid direct traci$an costs related to this
acquisition of $3.2 million. We paid the purchasieg@in cash from available func
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The final allocation of the purchase prices, oraggregate basis, was as follows:

(In thousandy)

Total
Cash and shc-term investment $ 28,56
Accounts receivabl 5,62¢
Property and equipme 1,77¢
Investments in auction rate securit 17,00(
Deferred tax asse 4,94¢
Other asset 3,437
Acquired intangible assets (assigned lives of 8 years, 77,12(
Goodwill (tax deductible 2,051
Goodwill (not deductible for tax purpose 67,78¢
Accounts payable and other liabiliti (32,36¢)
Deferred revenu (9,120
Total 166,81¢
Less: cash acquire (26,536
Net cash pail $140,28:

The value of the intangible assets acquired asgbaine acquisition of IONA was $52.2 million fougghased technology and $16.9 million for
customer-related and other intangibles with a weidtaverage amortization period of 7.3 years a@d¢&ars for each class of intangible assets,
respectively. The value of goodwill (not deductifide tax purposes) associated with the acquisiiiONA was $63.4 million.

The following table sets forth supplemental, untadipro forma financial information that assumesahquisition of IONA was completed at
the beginning of each pro forma period presentée.imformation for the twelve months ended Novengi:r2008 includes our historical
results for fiscal 2008 and the historical resaftSONA for the nine-month period ended June 3@M&@lue to different fiscal period ends.

The unaudited pro forma results include estimatesassumptions regarding increased amortizationtangible assets related to the
acquisition, decreased interest income relateést paid for the purchase price of the acquisaiot the related tax effects, which we believe
are reasonable. However, pro forma results areexgssarily indicative of the results that wouldéhaccurred if the acquisitions had occurred
on the date indicated, or that may result in tharti

(In thousands, except per share data, unaudi

Year Ended November 3 200¢
Pro forma revenu $567,54¢
Pro forma net incom 27,38¢
Pro forma diluted earnings per sh 0.4z

We have not included financial information for Xieahnd Mindreef in the pro forma results as théohisal operations were not significant to
our consolidated financial statements either irdliaily or in the aggregate.

Note 14: Restructuring Charges
Q3 2010 Restructuring Plan

During the third quarter of fiscal 2010, our managet approved, committed to and initiated plangstructure and improve efficiencies in
operations as a result of certain management ggahzational changes. The restructuring was unkiemtso better position the company for
long-term growth, improved profitability, greatesmpetitiveness and improved efficiency across doina business. These initiatives include
the refinement of our product portfolio towardsecand high-growth opportunities, the global cortaiion and redeployment of a portion of
our product development and administrative persip@ssets and processes to other global locatimioffer greater efficiencies to the
business and the continued consolidation of offaresind the world. To accomplish these goals, aitid awiew toward better optimizing
operations and improving productivity and efficignae reduced our global workforce by approximatélyercent primarily within the
development, sales and administrative organizatidhis workforce reduction was conducted acrosgedigraphies and also resulted in a
consolidation of offices in certain locations. Tdwivities related to this restructuring also counéd into the fourth quarter and are expected to
continue through fiscal 2011. The total costs mthcond half of fiscal 2010 associated
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with the restructuring aggregated to $14.0 millidhese costs primarily related to employee severand facilities related expenses, and were
recorded to the restructuring expense line iterhiwibur consolidated statements of operations.r&€kgucturing charge included $0.2 million
of noncash stock-based compensation. The excaida@nd other costs represent facilities céstainused space and termination costs of
automobile leases for employees included in thekfeoce reduction.

These strategic initiatives also involve the inseghinvestment and expansion of development andih&liration operations in India, where we
have run a successful development organizatioedeeral years. Over the next twelve months, we@xpedncrease the size of our
development organization in Hyderabad, India, fedmout a third of our development resources to abalfif in order to maximize resources
and manage our development costs as we increasald¥&D headcount and bandwidth in our key prodaretas. Therefore, we expect to
move and add additional product group functionwel as certain administrative functions to Indidis expansion in India will result in the
reduction of our development and administrationrapens headcount in other geographies in whicloperate. In addition, we intend to
continue the consolidation of some of our officesuad the world.

Through these initiatives, we expect to incur aggte future pre-tax restructuring charges and gxaxdn-recurring transition expenses of
approximately $5 million to $8 million over the rigwelve months, primarily comprising costs for sence, transition costs and consolidation
of facilities. The transition expenses are necgswaramp up the new, more efficient capabilitiaead of switching over from the existing cost
structure. We will report these restructuring cleagrgnd transition expenses in our financial regdtthey are incurred during the phase-in
period.

Q1 2010 Restructuring Plan

During the first quarter of fiscal 2010, our managat approved, committed to and initiated planestructure and improve efficiencies in our
operations as a result of certain management agah@ational changes and recent acquisitions. &sieucturing was undertaken to enhance
and re-focus our product strategy, to improve thg we take our products to market by becoming mastomer and solutions driven, and to
increase our market awareness. To accomplish thede, and with a view toward better optimizing ig@ns and improving productivity and
efficiency, we reduced our global workforce by appmately 13 percent primarily within the salesyelepment, marketing and administrative
organizations. This workforce reduction was conddeicross all geographies and also resulted imsotidation of offices in certain locations.
The total costs associated with the restructurggyegated to $26.0 million. These costs primaehated to employee severance and facilities
related expenses, and were recorded to the ragtingiexpense line item within our consolidatedesteents of operations. The restructuring
charge included $0.3 million of noncash stock-basmdpensation. The excess facilities and otheisaegtresent facilities costs for unused
space and termination costs of automobile leagemnfiployees included in the workforce reduction.

Q4 2008 and Q1 2009 Restructuring Plans

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 and thretfguarter of fiscal 2009, our management approsechmitted to and initiated plans to
restructure and improve efficiencies in our operatias a result of certain management and orgamahthanges and recent acquisitions. The
total costs associated with these restructuringseagted to $11.8 million. These costs primarilpted to employee severance and facilities
related expenses, and were recorded to the ragtingiexpense line item within our consolidatedesteents of income. The excess facilities
and other costs represent facilities costs for edspace and termination costs of automobile Idasesnployees included in the workforce
reduction.

In addition to the above restructuring plans andannection with certain of our prior acquisitiomss established reserves for exit costs related
to consolidation and closure of facilities for uadspace and employee severance included as ghe péirchase price allocation. Substant
all such amounts have been settled except for rengaexcess facility costs associated with ourtiocan Ireland.
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A summary of activity for all restructuring actioissas follows:

(In thousands

Excess Facilitie

Employee Severan

and Other Cos and Related Benef Total
Balance, December 1, 20 $ 33 % — $ 33¢
Establishment of reserve related to IONA acquisi 7,617 3,17 10,78¢
Establishment of reserve related to Q4 2008 refsiring 67€ 6,23¢ 6,91¢
Cash disbursemen (560 (2,735 (3,29%)
Balance, November 30, 20! 8,06¢ 6,67¢ 14,74
Establishment of reserve related to Q1 2009 retsirung 394 5,28( 5,674
Adjustments to initial reserve (72 (18€) (258)
Cash disbursemen (2,906 (11,950 (14,85¢)
Translation adjustments and otl 70€ 432 1,13¢
Balance, November 30, 201 6,191 252 6,44:
Establishment of reserve related to Q1 2010 refsiring 5,28¢ 20,157 25,44t
Establishment of reserve related to Q3 2010 retsirung 2,45 8,57: 11,02t
Additional reserves related to Q3 2010 restructuend adjustments to initial resen (37) 3,007 2,97(
Cash disbursemen (4,947 (27,59)) (32,54
Translation adjustments and otl (320 (37€) (69€)
Balance, November 30, 20. $ 8,627 $ 4,01¢ $ 12,64:

The amounts included under cash disbursementxéass facilities costs are net of proceeds recdigad sublease agreements. The balan
the employee severance and related benefits i@ be paid over a period of time ending indi2011. The balance of the excess

facilities and related costs is expected to be paé@t a period of time ending in fiscal 2013.

For all restructuring reserves described aboveshioet-term portion of $8.8 million is included ither accrued liabilities and the long-term
portion of $3.8 million is included in other nonreent liabilities on the balance sheet at Novend@er2010.

Note 15: Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudéd)

(In thousands, except per share d)

First Secon Third Fourtt
Quarte Quarte Quarte Quarte

2010:
Revenue $127,54° $127,65¢ $128,73' $145,18(
Gross profil 103,54t 102,42! 104,02¢ 119,79¢
Income(loss) from operatiot (4,379 22,74* 16,46¢ 32,83t
Net income (2,00¢€) 19,05¢ 9,24¢ 21,27¢
Diluted earnings per sha (0.01) 0.2¢ 0.14 0.31
Basic earnings per she (0.03) 0.3C 0.14 0.3¢

2009:
Revenue $120,86( $117,04° $119,43! $136,79°
Gross profil 96,48: 94,45:¢ 96,90 113,09:
Income(loss) from operatiot 4,71¢ 11,54: 9,092 25,78(
Net income 3,652 6,90¢ 5,521 16,67¢
Diluted earnings per sha 0.0¢ 0.11 0.0¢ 0.27
Basic earnings per she 0.0€ 0.11 0.0¢ 0.27
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountason Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedure

Our management maintains disclosure controls ancegures as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-LiG¢er the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) that asghed to provide reasonable assurance that iafamrequired to be disclosed in our
reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Agrbcessed, recorded, summarized and reportethwlitime periods specified in the
SEC's rules and forms, and that such informaticeccisumulated and communicated to our managemehiding our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer (our principal execwtigfficer and principal financial officer, respegly), as appropriate, to allow for timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, including the chief executive effiand the chief financial officer, carried outesaluation of the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the etttegberiod covered by this report. Based on thiduation, our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer concluded that our discloseontrols and procedures were effective to enthatethe information required to be
disclosed in the reports filed or submitted by ndar the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 was rexhyrgrocessed, summarized and reported
within the requisite time periods and that sucleinfation was accumulated and communicated to onagement, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, gspeopriate to allow for timely decisions regardiegjuired disclosure.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of Progress Software Corporatiesjgonsible for establishing and maintaining adegurernal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in ExchangeRde 13a-15(f). Because of its inherent limitatioingernal control over financial reporting
may not prevent or detect misstatements. Our iate@ntrol system was designed to provide reaseraggurance to our management and
board of directors regarding the preparation airdpf@sentation of published financial statements.

Our management assessed the effectiveness ofteumahcontrol over financial reporting as of Nou®n 30, 2010. In making this assessment,
we used the criteria set forth by the Committe8mdnsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommisgdSO) in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework. Based on our assessmentliegdénhat, as of November 30, 2010, our intermaitml over financial reporting is
effective based on those criteria.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fio@l reporting as of November 30, 2010 has beditediby Deloitte & Touche LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,taged in their report which is included herein.
(d) Changes in internal control over financial repoting

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting during the quarter ended Noven®D, 2010 that have materially affec
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, anternal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Progress Software Corporation

Bedford, MA

We have audited the internal control over finanoéplorting of Progress Software Corporation andlidries (the “Company”) as of
November 30, 2010 based on criteria establishidnternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camjgamanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financi
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigsered internal control over financial reportingglided in the accompanyindanagement’s
Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financialgeeting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on@wmpanys internal control ove
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightfq&@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordwer financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiagutne design and operating effectiveness oftiratecontrol based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considezeessary in the circumstances. We believe thadadit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supenvigi the company’s principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons pemfiorg similar functions, and effected by the compaipard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneedieg the reliability of financial reporting anltkt preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles. A company’s internaitcol over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheataintenance of records that, in reasonableldataurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide reasonable assurance that transactionre@reded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with gengiadcepted accounting principles, and that recaiptsexpenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngangent and directors of the company; and (3) peoxédsonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized astjion, use, or disposition of the company’s assleat could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcolhover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoarover financial reporting to future periods atebject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditivttgt the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of November 30, 2010
based on the criteria establishedriternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadribe
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@inited States), the consolidated
financial statements of the Company as of andHeryear ended November 30, 2010 and our reportl dateuary 31, 2011 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
January 31, 2011
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance

The information required by this Item 10 with resip® our directors and executive officers, inchglthe qualifications of the members of the
Audit Committee of our Board of Directors, may leifid in the sections captioned, “Proposal 1—EleatibDirectors,” “Committees of the
Board,” “Certain Relationships” and “Section 16B®neficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” appeguimour definitive Proxy Statement
for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held\pril 28, 2011, which will be filed with the Setties and Exchange Commission

(SEC) not later than 120 days after November 3@02This information is incorporated herein by refece

The following information is provided with respegotthe members of our Board of Directors.

Barry N. Bycoff
Executive Chairman
Progress Software Corporation

Ram Gupta
Former President and Chief Executive Officer
CAST Iron Systems, Inc.

Charles F. Kane
Strategic Advisor
One Laptop Per Child

David A. Krall
President and Chief Operating Officer
Roku, Inc.

Michael L. Mark
Lead Independent Director
Progress Software Corporation

Richard D. Reidy
President and Chief Executive Officer
Progress Software Corporation

Code of Conduct

We have adopted a Code of Conduct that appliel éongployees and directors. A copy of the Code ofduct is publicly available on our
website at www.progress.com. If we make any sulisaamendments to the Code of Conduct or granteaiyer, including any implicit
waiver, from the Code of Conduct to our executiffecers or directors, we will disclose the natufesach amendment or waiver in a current
report on Form 8-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 with resip@ director and executive compensation may bedainder the headings captioned
“Director Compensation,” “Compensation Discussiod &nalysis” and “Executive Compensation” in oufidigive Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Ap8il 2011, which will be filed with the SEC not lathan 120 days after November 30, 2(
This information is incorporated herein by refermnc
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @vners and Management

The information required by this Item 12 with resip@ security ownership and our equity compensgtians may be found under the head
captioned “Information About Progress Software Camnrstock Ownership” and “Equity Compensation Plaiordmation” in our definitive
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Sharediiddo be held on April 28, 2011, which will beefll with the SEC not later than 120 days
after November 30, 2010. This information is inamaded herein by reference.

Information related to securities authorized feumsnce under equity compensation plans as of Noge8th 2010 is as follows:

(In thousands, except per share de

Number o Weightec-averag  Number o

Securities to k Exercist Securitie

Issued Upo Price 0 Remainin(

Exercise ¢ Outstandin Available

Outstandin Options For

Options, Warran Warrant: Future

Plan Categonr and Right and Right Issuanc
Equity compensation plans approved by sharehol(d¢ 8,00((2) $% 17.61 8,09((3)

Equity compensation plans not approved by sharensi@) 1,87¢ 17.21 1,271

Total 9,87¢ $ 17.5¢ 9,361

(1) Consists of the 1992 Incentive and NonqualifieccktOption Plan, 1994 Stock Incentive Plan, 199&Ktacentive Plan, 2008 Stor
Option and Incentive Plan and 1991 Employee Stacktlase Plan (ESPF

(2) Does not include purchase rights accruingeutice ESPP because the purchase price (and theteéonumber of shares to be purchased)
will not be determined until the end of the pur@hpsriod.

(3) Includes 881,000 shares available for future isseamder the ESP!
(4) Consists of the 2002 Nonqualified Stock Plan ard2®04 Inducement Plan described bel

We have adopted two equity compensation plan2@0 Nonqualified Stock Plan (2002 Plan) and the42@ducement Stock Plan (2004
Plan), for which the approval of shareholders watsraquired. We intend that the 2004 Plan be reskfor persons to whom we may issue
securities as an inducement to become employed Ipyitsuant to the rules and regulations of NASDEgecutive officers and members of
Board of Directors are not eligible for awards unithe 2002 Plan. An executive officer or directayuld be eligible to receive an award under
the 2004 Plan only as an inducement to join us. i&/ander the 2002 Plan and the 2004 Plan maydaatenqualified stock options, grants
conditioned stock, unrestricted grants of stockntg of stock contingent upon the attainment ofigperance goals and stock appreciation
rights. A total of 11,250,000 shares are issuabtieuthe two plans.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ins, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item 13 may berfdwnder the headings “Independence,” “Review ah$actions with Related Persons” and
“Transactions with Related Persons” in our defigtProxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shaledrs to be held on April 28, 2011,
which will be filed with the SEC not later than 188ys after November 30, 2010. This informatioméorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 may berfdwnder the heading “Information About Our Indegemt Registered Public Accounting
Firm” in our definitive Proxy Statement for the Amal Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April2®&11, which will be filed with the SEC
not later than 120 days after November 30, 2016 iftfiormation is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents Filed as Part of this Annual Reportmm Form 10-K
1. Financial Statements (included in Item 8 of thimAal Report on Form -K):

— Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm

— Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 30, 20d200¢

— Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearswgridovember 30, 2010, 2009 and 2(

— Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity for the years ending November 30, 2010, 2809 200¢
— Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeadghg November 30, 2010, 2009 and 2

— Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
2. Financial Statement Schedu
Financial statement schedules are omitted as tteegitner not required or the information is othisenincluded in the consolidated financial
statements.
(b) Exhibits

Documents listed below, except for documents foldwy parenthetical numbers, are being filed aghéshDocuments followed by
parenthetical numbers are not being filed herewaitth, pursuant to Rule 12b-32 of the General RuidsRegulations promulgated by the SEC
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Aeference is made to such documents as previfilestyas exhibits with the SEC. Our file
number under the Act is 0-19417.

2.2 Implementation Agreement, dated as of June 25, 2008nd among IONA Technologies PLC, SPK Acquisisi Limited and, witl
respect to Section 7.4 and Section 7.7 only, PesgBoftware Corporation (

3.1 Restated Articles of Organization, as amendet

3.2 By-Laws, as amended and restatec

4.1 Specimen certificate for the Common Stock

10.1* 1992 Incentive and Nonqualified Stock Option P&
10.2* 1994 Stock Incentive Plan (
10.3* 1997 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and regfal:

10.4* Employee Retention and Motivation Agreement as aledrand restated, executed by each of the ExedDffieers (other than the
Chief Executive Officer) (8

10.5* 2002 Nonqualified Stock Plan, as amended and ess(8)
10.6* 2004 Inducement Stock Plan, as amended and re¢fag

10.7* Progress Software Corporation 1991 Employee StockHase Plan, as amended and restatec

10.8* Progress Software Corporation 2008 Stock Optionlacentive Plan, as amended and restated

10.9* Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Options and GrAgteement under the Progress Software Corporafd®® Stock Incentive Plan
13)

10.10*  Progress Software Corporation Corporate ExecutiveuB Plan (14
10.11* Progress Software Corporation 2010 Fiscal Year-Employee Directors Compensation Program
10.12* Form of Deferred Stock Unit Agreement under thegRees Software Corporation 2008 Stock Incentive P1&)
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10.13*

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement forriNEmployee Directors under the Progress Softwarp@ation 2008 Stock
Incentive Plan (Initial Grant) (17

10.14* Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for N-Employee Directors under the Progress Software @atjpn 2008 Stoc

Incentive Plan (Annual Grant) (1

10.15.1° Employment Letter Agreement, dated May 12, 200%iy between Progress Software Corporation ang/ BarBycoff regarding

the terms of Mr. Bycols employment as Executive Chairman of the Boafdidctors of Progress Software Corporation (

10.15.2° Letter Agreement, dated January 15, 2010, by atwldem Progress Software Corporation and Barry MoByegarding the

extension of Mr. Bycofs employment as Executive Chairman of the Boafdiadctors of Progress Software Corporation (

10.16* Employment Letter, dated as of May 12, 2009, betnRmgress Software Corporation and Richard D. yRgid)
10.17* Amended and Restated Employee Retention and Mtivatgreement, dated as of October 13, 2009, bytetween Progress

Software Corporation and Richard D. Reidy (

10.18* Severance Agreement, dated as of October 13, d@d®een Progress Software Corporation and RichaRieidly (23)

10.19* Separation Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2008ebr Progress Software Corporation and Josephl¥8pA24)

10.20* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement under thegRess Software Corporation 2008 Stock Incentiaa 25)

10.21* Separation Agreement, dated as of March 31, 20dttyden Progress Software Corporation and Jeffram&t (26

10.22* Employment Letter, dated as of October 15, 201(riy between Progress Software Corporation andé&shiar Wagner, Jr. (2°
10.23* Letter Agreement, dated November 12, 2010, by atevden Progress Software Corporation and NormawoRertson (28

211
23.1
311
31.2
32.1

List of Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Independent Reged Public Accounting Firt
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 200z- Richard D. Reidy
Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 200z- Charles F. Wagner, ¢
Certification Pursuant to Section 906 of the Saek-Oxley Act of 200z

@)
@)
®3)
4)
(5)
(6)
@)
(8)
©)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of For-K filed June 26, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of For-K filed May 1, 2006

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of For-K filed September 22, 200

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of For-K filed May 1, 2006

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of oumAal Report on Form -K for the year ended November 30, 20
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of ounAal Report on Form -K for the year ended November 30, 20
Incorporated by reference to Appendix B to ourniéfie Proxy Statement filed March 27, 20!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of For-K filed January 6, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of ouia@erly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of oura@erly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Annex B to our deifirifProxy Statement filed March 26, 20:

Incorporated by reference to Annex A to our defieitProxy Statement filed March 26, 20:

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of For-K filed on April 28, 2008
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(14)
(15)
(16)
7)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
(27)
(28)

*

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to oua@erly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended May 31, 20
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of For-K filed on March 30, 201(

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of For-K filed on April 28, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of For-K filed on April 28, 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of For-K filed on April 28, 2008

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to oua@erly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended May 31, 20
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16.2 to Anonual Report on Form -K for the year ended November 30, 20
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to oua@erly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended May 31, 20
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of For-K/A filed on October 19, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of For-K/A filed on October 19, 200¢

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ouaferly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended August 30, 20
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to onnAal Report on Form -K for the year ended November 30, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to oua@erly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2(
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Fo-K filed on November 12, 201!

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Foi-K filed on November 12, 2011

Management contract or compensatory plan or arraggein which an executive officer or director sbg§ress Software participat

(c) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are noicgtyé or the required information is shown onfihancial statements or notes thereto.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons on behalf of 1

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized, on the 31st day of January, 2011.

registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated.

Signature

Title

PROGRESS SOFTWARE CORPORATIC

By:

/sl RICHARD D. REIDY

Richard D. Reidy
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date

/s/ RICHARD D. REIDY

Richard D. Reidy

/sl CHARLES F. WAGNER, JR.

Charles F. Wagner, Jr.

/sl DAVID H. BENTON, JR

David H. Benton, Ji

/sl BARRY N. BYCOFF

Barry N. Bycoff

/sl RAM GUPTA

Ram Gupt:

/sl CHARLES F. KANE

Charles F. Kan

/sl DAVID A. KRALL

David A. Krall

/sl MICHAEL L. MARK

Michael L. Mark

President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc
(Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Vice President, Finance and
Administration and Chief Financial
Officer (Principal Financial Officel

Vice President and Corporate Contro
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Executive Chairman of the Board

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Subsidiaries of Progress Software Corporation

North America
Barbados
California
California
California
Canade
Canade
Canade
Canade
Canade
Canade
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Deleware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Massachuseti
Massachuseti
Massachuseti
Massachuseti
Pennsylvanii

Europe
Austria
Belgium
Belgium
Belgium
Czech Republi
Denmark
Finland
France
France
France
Germany
Germany
Ireland
Ireland
Ireland

Progress Software International Sales Corporz

Netfish Technologies, In
OpenAccess Software In
Savvion, Inc

Actional Technologies, Ltc
NEON Systems Quebec, Ir
NEON Systems Canada Ir
Object Oriented Concepts, Ir

Progress Software Corporation of Canada

PeerDirect Compan
Apama Inc.

Actional Corporatior
FuseSource Cor|

IONA Government Technologies, Ir

NEON Systems, Inc

Netfish Technologies, In
Object Oriented Concepts, Ir
Pantero Corporatio
PeerDirect Corporatio
Persistence Software Ir

Progress Software International Corporai

Progress Software Corporati
Sawvion International Corporatic
Xcalia Corp.

DataDirect Technologies Cor
Oak Park Realty LL(

Oak Park Realty Two LL(
Progress Security Corporati
Genesis Development Corporati

Progress Software Gesmt
DataDirect Technologies N

IONA Technologies (Belgium), S.

Progress Software N
Progress Software spol. s.r
Progress Software A/
Progress Software O
IONA Technologies, SARI
Progress Software S.,
Xcalia SA

Progress Software Gmk
Sonic Software Gmbl
IONA Technologies Limitec
IONA Research (IRL) Ltd
Orbix Limited

Exhibit 21.1




Italy
Netherland:
Netherland:
Netherland:
Netherland:
Norway

Poland

Spain

Spain

Sweder
Switzerland
Switzerland
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Latin America

Argentina
Brazil
Chile
Colombia
Mexico
Venezuele

Asia Pacific

Other

Australia
Australia
Australia
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
India

India
Japar
Malaysia
Singapore
Singapore
South Africa

Cayman lIsland

Progress Software Italy S.r
IONA Technologies (Netherlands) B
Progress Software B.\

Progress Software Europe B.
Savvion B.V.

Progress Software A/

Progress Software Sp. z.o

IONA Technologies Spain S
Progress Software S.L.1
Progress Software Svenska ;
IONA Technologies (Schweiz) A
Progress Software A

Apama Limited

DataDirect Technologies Lti
NEON Systems UK Lt
Persistence Software Lt
Progress Software Limite

Sonic Software (UK) Limitet

Progress Software de Argentina S
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®emgion Statements No. 33-41752, 33-50654, 33206333-41393, 333-41403, 388571
333-98035, 333-101239, 333-122962, 333-146233 88d130555 on Form S-8 and Registration StatemenBB®-133724 on Form S-3 of
our report January 31, 2011, relating to the fimgratatements of Progress Software Corporationth@e@ffectiveness of Progress Software
Corporation’s internal control over financial repog, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 1@fProgress Software Corporation for the
year ended November 30, 20

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
January 31, 2011



Exhibit 31.]

CERTIFICATION
I, Richard D. Reidy, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRrogress Software Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as definec
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure control and procedaries designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tbgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigrie made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over fiiahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggtite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the itegi’s internal control over financial reportirtat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrantourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabmg that has materially affected, or is reasopéikély to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEregistrant’s board of directors (or persongquening the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalwveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: January 31, 2011

/s/ RICHARD D. REIDY

Richard D. Reidy

President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
I, Charles F. Wagner, Jr., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fRrogress Software Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaior@ny untrue statement of a material fact or améitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure control and procedaries designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidigrie made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period ihigh this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over foahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggatite reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registramtourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuadrg that has materially affected, or is reasopnéikély to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal cohwer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitieregistrant’s board of directors (or personggreing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisisability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: January 31, 201

/s/ CHARLES F. WAGNER, JR.

Charles F. Wagner, J

Executive Vice President, Finance and
Administration and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant To 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, #Adopted Pursuant To Section 906 of the Sarbanesx@®y Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on FormK.@f Progress Software Corporation (the Company}He year ended November 30, 201(
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiorthe date hereof (the Report), each of the ungieesi, Richard D. Reidy, President and
Chief Executive Officer, and Charles F. Wagner,Bxrecutive Vice President, Finance and Adminigiraand Chief Financial Officer, of the
Company, certifies, to the best knowledge and befi¢he signatory, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectiBb(, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Reportl§apresents, in all material respects, the findnmadition and results of operations of the

Company.
/s/ RICHARD D. REIDY /sl CHARLES F. WAGNER, JF
President and Chief Executive Offic Executive Vice President, Finan

and Administration and Chief Financial Offic

Date: January 31, 20: Date: January 31, 20!



